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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH,
Vendor # 177195, for the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program by increasing the price
limitation by $ 14,550 from $ 15,503 to $30,053 and by extending the completion date from September
30,2025 to September 30,2027 effective upon Govenor and Executive Council approval.

This contract was originally approved by Govemor and Executive Council on November 22,2022
(Item #69). 100% Other Funds (Transfer from NH DHHS).

Funds are available in Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 and anticipated to be available for FY 2026 and 2027 in
the account Fuel Assistance upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in the future
operating budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office if needed and
Justified.

FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027

02-52-52-520010-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $4,750 $7,840 $1,960

EXPLANATION

This amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE based on historical performance of the Community
Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service capabilities. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs
who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three decades. The
CAAs work closely with Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of the program.

This Department contract provides the Community Action Agency with the program funds to support
the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program. The SEAS Program makes home energy
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more affordable for households with members who are 60 years of age or older, who are experiencing
a home energy hardship, and who are not eligible for the state's Fuel Assistance Program under the
current income limits. The CAAs determine eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and are able
to efficiently distribute these funds to households in need that are not eligible for the Fuel Assistance
Program.

A federal grant provided by the Administration for Community Living (Title IIIB Supportive
Services) awarded to the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS)
Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides funding for the Senior Energy Assistance Services
Program. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for this program was originally approved by
Governor and Council oh March 23,2022, Item #25, and amended by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 25,2024, Item #34.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

spectfully s

fared S. Chicoine

'Commissioner



'NEW-HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: SENIOR ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES CONTRACT

'  TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC

AMENDMENT#!

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter "State") and with Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc, 30 Exchange St, Berlin, Coos County, NH 03570
(hereinafter "Contractor*)-

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
the New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council on November 22,2022, Item #69, the
Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the
Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the New Hampshire Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

I) Amendment and Modification of Agreement The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) - Completion Date: Amend Suboaragraph 1.7 of the Agreement bv strikine
the current completion date of September 30, 2025 and inserting in place
thereof the date of September 30, 2027.

I

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $15,503 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$30,053.

C) Exhibit C • Pavment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first and second paragraph
by striking the cunent sum of $ 15,503 and inserting in place thereof the
total sum of $30,053. Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph, by striking the
current completion date of September 30, 2025 and inserting in place
thereof the date of September 30,2027.

y

US DOE Award # 2101NHOASS, 220INHOASS. 2301NHOASS. 240INHOASS Contractor's Initials
TCCASEAS23 ALN: 93.044 . Date
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2)

D) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "September 21,
2022 to September 30. 2027."

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to "September 21,2022 to
September 30,2027."

Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of ̂e parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Enert

S. Chicoine, Commissioner

Tri-County Commumty Actioiyfrogram, Inc.

Date: lOl7laM
Jeanl^^obiUard, Chief Executive Officer

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICI

10/15/2024

TTDRNEY GENERAL

Date:

Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on ^ , 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

US DOE Award tt 2I01NHOASS, 2201NHOASS. 2301NHOASS. 240INHOASS Contractor's Initials _
TCCASEAS23 ALN; 93.044 Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M. Scanlan. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

•ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18.1965. 1 further certify that ail fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's oftice have

been received and is in good standing as far as this olfice is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0006652662

H.

Ik

O
49

4^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afTl.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this Isi day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_Sandy Alqnzo ^ , f>ereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerK/Secretary/Offlcer of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ..
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ^May 17th - 2024 . at which a quorum of the Dlrectors/shareholdefs were present and
voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jaanne Robillard. Randall Pilotte. Brenda Gaone (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Trl-County Community Action Program, INC. to enter Into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and aD
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

■3. t hereby certify that said vote has'not been amended or repealed and remains in fuD force and effect as of the .
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for.
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the per8on(s) listed above currently occupy the

'p08ltlon(8) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: i IIj
Signatureof Electc
Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title;

cer

Rev. 03/24/20



AC^RCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATS rXMJOO/WYY)

06/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IN$URER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If ths carUflcsts holdar Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, ths pellcy(ias) must havs ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo srtdorssd.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjoct to tho torms and conditions of ths policy, cortaln pollcloa may rsquiro an ondorstmsnt. A statsmsnt on
this csrtlflcato dots net confer rights to ths csrtlficsts holder In Hsu of such sndorssmsnt(s).

MOOUCCR

Cross Insursncs-Manchsstsr

1100 Elm StTSSt

Msnchssisr NH 03101

Sams?" Lindsay Goodrlch
(603)669.321. ira,..., (603)645-03,

manch.cartsOcrossagsncy.com

StSURCRtSI AffOaOIHO COVEtUGC MAICa

INSURER A PNIadslphIa indsmnlty Ins Co 16055

stsuno

Tri-Courtty Community Action Program, inc

30 Exchsngs Strssi

Bsrtin NK 03570

MSURCRB Granlts Stats Hsaltn Cars and Human Sarvicas Saif-

INSURSR C

INSURER 0

MSURSRI -

NSURERP

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUClES OF INSURANCE LISTED 6EL0W HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLIOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WSR

tiTR TYPE OF nOURANCE irmrw POLICY NUMBER
FdLiCVCFF

rumoc/vYYYi
FOLKVIXF

(UWmD/VYYYI LiarTS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UASItJTY

C  OCCUR

.

PHPK2571941 07/01/2024 07/01/2025
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MEO EXPIAnv en* »«t*onl , S.DOO

1 PERSONAL S AOV INJURY J  1.000.000

QET

X

n. aooreoate lasT appues per:

I^AJCY CZl JECT [III LOG
OTHER:

GENERAL ACCRECATB , 3.000.000

PRODUCTS • COMPIOPAOO , 3.000.000

ProfssslonsI LlstiUlty i 1.000.000

A

AU1'OMOSILE UASILfTY

PHPK2S71943 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(B* •eeWMni S 1,000.000

X AMY AUTO

IHEOULEO
ITOS
m-OWNED
ITOS ONLY
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OWNED
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A
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X ' AGGREGATE J 2.000.000
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B

: WORKERS COMMNSATtON

ANOCMFLOYERS-UA81UTY y/N
ANYPROPR«TORrPART»«R>exECUTivE rjn
OFnCERAIEMSER EXauOG}? | ^ \
(tMnSttorylflNH) '

DESCRIPTION OF OPCRAT)ONSb«lo>» '

N<A HCHS2024(X)0057$ (3s.) NK 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

V kEA 1 6th.
^ STATUTE 1 ER

e.l. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE , 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLXV LIMIT j I.OOO.tXX)
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Rsbr to policy kx sxctuaionary sndorsamsnts snd spadal prevbions.

NH Dspsrtmsnt of Energy

21 South FruH St.. Sts. 10

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF TN£ A0OV8 DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRSSENTATIve

ACORD 2S (2018/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. AH rights rtitrvad.
Ths ACORD nsms snd logo ars rsglsttrsd marks of ACORD

pv.- . 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

)>ROniSSfOKU. ASSOCIATION

CF.RTIF1ED PUULICACCOUi-rTAffTS

•DOVER* WUI.FF.B/.)RO
NORTJICONWAY

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Commuhlty Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate as of Juno 30,
2023, and the changes in Its net assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance^with auditing standards generally accepted in .the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General.of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidehce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial- statements are available to be
issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and

to Issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
initemal control. Misstatements are considered material if there Is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Govemmenf Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

• ■ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statemerits, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate,, that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Action Prog'ram,
Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain Internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Admini^rath/e
Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The Information has been subjected to the .auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directjy to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Other Repotting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 13. 2023. on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance vrith certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards In considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-Courity Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliates' 2022
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on tho^ audited financial
statements in our report dated November 15, 2022. In our opinion, the surfirriarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2.022, is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023



TRI.finUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash ar>d cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Right of use asset, operating
Restricted cash

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of right of use liability, operating
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Right of use liability, operating, less current portion
Long term debt, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2023 2022

$ 4,400,730 $ 3.827,664

1,313.655 977.227

2.024.546 1,607.274

192,212 169.198
123.409 59.759
138.888 138.811

8.193.440 6.979,931

12.858.931 12.794.151
(6.522.499) (6,088.809)

6,336,432 6,705,542

208,857 '

413.721 410,431

622,578 410,431

$15,152,450 $14,095,904

$  139,961 $  134,452

86,219 -

456,444 262.473
249.777 228,342

90.948 81.707

95.772 117,415

403,239 446,208
1,342.462 1,085.408

2,864,822 2,356,003

122,638 .

•  4,296.550 4,442,866

7,284,010 6.798,869

7,577,645 7.037.337

290,795 259,698

7,668.440 7,297,035

$ 15,152,450 $ 14,095,904

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. tNC-AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Total supporting activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

1.239.89S

43.461.391

540,308

7.037.337

S 7.577.645

31,097

259.698

1.239.895

43.481.391

571.405

7.297.035

W»l 1 1 1 1 I I^IX WWII.

Without Donor With Donor 2023 2022

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants and contracts $ 39.636.536 $  168.387 $ 39,804,923 $33,019,028

Program funding 1.131.923 - 1.131.923 1.178,528

Utility programs 1,458,145 - •  i:458.145 1.862,325

In-kind contributions 479,251 •-> 479,251 228.341

Contributions 252,119 252,119 140,578

Fundreising 23.626 • 23,628 8,616

Rental income 887.061 • 867.061 797.436

Interest income 26,196 • 28.198 484

Gain on disposal of property 6.817 6,817 8.874

'Other revenue .  2.735 • 2.735 4.789

Total revenues ar>d other support 43.884,409 168.387 44,052,796 37.248.999

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 137.290 f137.290i •t
..

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions 44.021.699 31.097 44.052.796 37.248.999.

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund 1,314.337

■/ 1.314,337 1.453.842
Head Start 3.107.886 3.107,886 2.792.837
Guardianship 651,255 - 651,255 658,956
Transportation 1.404,213 • 1.404.213 892,112
Volunteer 72.150 ' T ' 72,150 62.053
Carroll County Dental 679.379 ■ 679.379 673,708'
Homeless 20.422.871 • 20,422.871 17.630.850
Energy and Community Development 13,099.599 - 13,099,599 9,978,945.
Elder 1,276,827 1.276,827 1.095,578
Housing Services 212,979 - 212,979 .. 248.736

Total program services 42,241.496 42.241.496 , 35.487.617,

Supporting Activities:
General and administrative 1.236.580 - 1,236.580 1,146,090
Fundraising •3.315; 3.315 1,266

1.147.356

36.634.973

614.026

6.683.009

$  290.795 $ 7.868.440 $ 7.297.035

See Notes to Consolidated .Financial Statements
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TRI-CQUNTY priMMtlNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
pOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
. Gain on disposal of property
Decrease (Increase) in assets:

- Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment on long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITiES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

2m 2022

S  571.405 S  614,026

52B.849 520.221

(6.817) (6,874)

(217.272) (190,025)
(23.016) 47.227

(63.650) (6.774)
(77) (85.217)

193.971 258,170'
21.435 (5.565)

9,241 (301.726)
(21;643) (149.180)

(42,969) 122.068

257.056 (315.239)

1.206.513 499.110

6.091 8.874

(161.013)- .(158.013)

(^52,922) •(149.139)'

(140.807) (129,^2)

(140.807)' ..(129.342)

912,764 220.629

5.215.322 4.9^.693

S  6.128.106 S  5.215.322,

$  88.845 S  95.695

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation
The" consolidated' financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, for the acquisition,
construction, and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following;

Aaencv

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and .development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



rm^aUkVf coMwiuNiTY^tetiQN prg6ram.inc: and affiliate,:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start funded enrollment is 217, but
over the course of the program year serves approximately 250 children in
Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based,
classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
wiiiing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services'; benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of T4
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 208 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which ,50
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 15,000 hours yearly.

10



TRNCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Carroll County Dentat

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers stale of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Homeless

Homeless'services Include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent Individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low'Income Weatherlzation

The NH weatherization program helps lovy-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServJceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling.
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services', and caregiver
supports.

11



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin.' New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200.
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major .program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Arherica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, . Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). .
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc. and affiliate have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the LInited States of
America, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Under ..this basis, revenue, other than
contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date
of receipt or paymeht of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

12



PROGRAM: IKIC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

■Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions
are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $290,795 and $259,698
at June 30, 2023 and 2022. respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions
Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of ariy
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of me
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is. when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are aniounts due frorh
federal and state awarding agencies, and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. Past due receivables are
written off at ijianagement's discretion using the direct write off method; this is'not
considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
State because the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance method. Management selects accounts to be written off after analyzing
past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, and collection rates for
receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of time outstanding. The
Organization does not charge interest on outstanding accounts receivable.
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TRI.COUNTY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Property and bebreciatlon
Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program isxharged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance, with the indirect cost plan.
"Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles ^ years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy
Cornerstone Housing North,. Ihc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Developrfierit for" the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $403,239 and $446,208 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

.14
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit. Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Qode and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors, The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS. generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
■clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes arid prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Management does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.- The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan
The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30. 2023 and 2022, there were no discretipnaiy
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the Organization's
403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically-need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Donated proper^ and equipment
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets-with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to cjjve that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is'merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the. amount of $192,212 and $169,196,
respectively. This amount is included in contributions in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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u

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its-
financial instrurhents. The carrying arnount of the Organization's firiaricial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs, and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated ahnong the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the
various programs and supporting services based on actual o.r
estimated time employees spend on each function as reported on a
timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program
based upon the classification of each employee and allocated to the
various program based upon the time employees spend on each
function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each
progranri as a percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These
expenses include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health
and dental insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is
allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon
specific assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation
expense on the statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable' to assets which are
used by multiple programs. Buildings are primarjiy charged to the
benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs
related to a building include depreciation, insurance, utilities, building
maintenance, etc. These costs are reported as space costs on the
statements of functional expenses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on
vehicle usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs
based on square footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture
and equipment is allocated to programs using the book basis of the

,  insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost
Pool and are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of
program expenses. The experises include items such as
administrative salaries, general liaibility insurance, administrative
travel, professional fees, and other experises which cannot be
specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other Indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022. received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. The actual
rates for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.were approximately 11.26% and
10.95%, respectively, which is allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of sen/ices. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 202jand 2022 was $20,143 and
$6,696. respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2023 and 2022.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarily from" grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Cornerstone derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the apartment
unit is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of one year and
are'cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred to the lessee
in an amount that reflects the consideration Cornerstone expects to be entitled to In
exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed
as incurred.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02. Leases {Topic 842), to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing'' key
information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard
applies a right of use rfiodel that requires, all leases with a lease term of more than
12 months, to recognize an asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The
Organization elected not to restate the comparative period. The Organization also
elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing contracts to determine
whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of-any existing
leases, (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. The adoption of ASU 2016-02
resulted in the recognition of an operating right of use assets of $208,857 and
operating lease liabilities of $208,857 as of June 30, 2023. Results for periods
beginning prior to July 1, 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with the
Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did
not have a material impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash
flows.

NOTE 2. ■ LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2023
and 2022:

-2023 2022

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 4,400,730 $ 3,827,664
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program 1,313,655 977,227
Accounts receivable 2,024,546 1,807,274
Pledges receivable 192,212 . 169,196
Restricted cash 413.721 410.431

Total financial assets . 8.344.864 7.191.792

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 290,795 259,698
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program 1,313,655 977,227
■  Restricted cash 413,721 410,431
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year (254.537^ 1207.879)

Amounts not available within one year 1.763.634 1:439.477

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months s 6.581-.230

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days, of-
operating expenses which approximates $6,982,000 and $5,899,000 at June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statemerits of
cash flows as of June 30:

2023 2022

Cash, operations. $ 4,400,730 $ 3,827,664
Restricted cash, current 1,313,655 977,227
Restricted cash, long term 413.721 410.431

Total cash and restricted cash $ 6.128.-106 -S '5.215.322

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which Is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maxinium required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $20,079 and $20,069, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022. These .amounts are included in restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond Issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balarice in the
account is $.173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2023 and 2022 was $174,841 and $174,807, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account Is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within .this account at June 30, 2023. and 2022
was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectively, and, is included in the restricted cash.
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts, related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization Under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30. 2023 and 2022 was $218,801 and $215,555, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY
In 2023. and 2022, inventory Included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2023 and 2022 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $123,409 and $59,759, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following al June 30, 2023;

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 10.119.418
2.278.559

42,114

418.840

Accumulated

Depreciation

$ '4.630,469
1.892.030

Net

Book Value

$ 5,488,949
386.529
42.114

418.840

£ 12.858 931 £ 6.522.499 £ 6.336-432

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2022:

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 10,039.601
2,329.022

6.688

418.840

Accumulated

Depreciation

$ 4.426.613
1.661,996

Net

Book Value

$  5.612,988
. 667.026

6,688
418.840

£ 12.794.151 ?• ?,7Q5.§4^

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022 totaled
$527,962 and $519,334, respectively.

NOTE 6. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
For the years'ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30. 2023 and
2022, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in 'the amount of $249,777 and $228,342.
respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 consisted of
the following:

2023 2022

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360
monthly installments of $1,664, including interest
at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets. Final installment due January 2027. $ 64,236 $ 80.546

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031. 236.057 261.160

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of
2.75% plus the bank's internal cost of funds
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate of
3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate
mortgage on various properties and assignments
of rents at various properties. Final installment
due August 2040. 2,276,888 2,377,169

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. This capital advance is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and
will be forgiven after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1.617,600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage
payable due to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The mortgage is not subject to interest
or principal amortization. Payments are deferred
for 40 years; final payment due in August 2047. 250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

4,444,781
f8.270)

■  4,586,475
.(9.157)

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

4.436.511

(139.9611

4,577,318
(134.4521

$ 4.296.550 $ 4.442 866
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30. 2023 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2024 $ 139,961

2025 145,697
2026 151,677
2027 148,113

2028 143.453
Thereafter 3.715.880

4i^^4i781.

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022 at 9.25% and 5.75% per annum, respectively. There was ho balance
outstanding at June 30. 2023 and 2022. the line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

On July 1, 2022, the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 642). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use
(ROU) asset represents the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to make-
lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all
of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of
future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to
discount future cash flows at the risk-free borrowing rales commensurate with the
lease terms, which was 3.01% at June 30. 2023. Common expenses, classified as
space costs in the accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease
component under FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are incurred. The
Organization's operating leases are described below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The Organi2_ation has entered into numerous lease commitments- for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has' several facilities which are leased on a month-tb-month basis.
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $147,801 and $141,820, respectively.

Lease liability maturities as of June 30.2023 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30: Amount

2024 $ 91,317

2025 59,685
2026 52,460

2027 11.372

2028 . 3.543

Total undiscounted lease liability 218,377
Less imputed interest (9.520)

Total lease liability £ 208.857

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS
The 'Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid .positions.

The fair value' of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the co/responding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total.

Professional services and

services for disabled $ 76,770 $ - $ 76,770
Packing, setup and delivery of

congregate and home
delivered meals : 102.077 102.077

5  76.770. $ 102.077. £ 178.847
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated-
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total
Professional services and

sen/ices for disabled $ 2,479 $ - S 2,479
Packing, setup and delivery of

congregate and home

delivered meals :

'£• -2.479 S 55.359 J. £L22a

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services. Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of those
services to be approximately $367,930 and $277,300 for the years ended June 30.
2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The- value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior

■  Head Start Meals total.
Difference between rent paid ^

and market rate $ 69.097 4i1W 7ji197

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Stert Meals Total
Difference between rent paid ^

and market rate £ 58.230 ? Ti89P ?
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The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended.
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless Transportation , Total

Employee use of
home ■ $ 73.495 $ - $ - $ 73,495

Donated goods - - 24,948 24.948
Hotel rooms for

homeless clients ^ 128.764 128.764

Total £ ZM25 128.764 2 24.948 S 227.207

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2022 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless -Total

Employee use of home $ 56,789 $ - $ 56,789
Donated goods - 1.400 1.400
Hotel rooms for homeless clients . : 52.284 52.284.

Total I S 53.684. S 110 473

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, approxinhately
$39,361,299 (89%) and $32,598,596 (88%), respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a significant
reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant impact .on
the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone receives a large majority of its support from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.
approximately 61% and 64%, respectively, of Cornerstone's total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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The majority of Cornerstone's assets are apartment projects, for which operahons
are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In addition.

• Cornerstone operates in a regulated ehvirohment. The operation of Cornerstone is
subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD. Such administrative^
directives, rules' and regulations are subject to change by ah act of Congress or an'
administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur .with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the administrative
burden, to comply with the change.

MOTF 13 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30. 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Temporary municipal funding $ 192,212 $
Restricted buildings 36,257 38,OM
Loans - HSGP 23,484 24,2M
RSVP program funds 5,708 6,25
FAP/EAP

CC Coos

Head Start

CC Carroll

CC Grafton

LIWAP Program
RSVP - Matter to Balance ^

Total net assets with donor restrictions $. 290.795 ?

5,099
3.577

180

180

6,132
2,370

427

421

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant ComoUance .u
The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. iJnder the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncomplianl with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Con(/ngenc/es

On March 30, 2009. the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin.- New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing ahd West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

28



INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012; the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Departmerit's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to me West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2023 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30. 2023, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,
no arfiount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

note 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone's regulatory agreement with MUD, the" Organization is required
to set aside amounts intp a replacement reserve for the replacement of property
and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-restricted deposit's of
$207,956 and $208,162 were held in a segregated account at June 30. 2023 and
2022, respectively.

During the year ended June 30. 2023, HUD approved a loan from the replacement
reserve account to the operating account to cover operating expenses due to the
delay in HAP vouchers being processed by HUD. Once all HAP vouchers are
processed and paid. Cornerstone will pay back the replacenient reserve account the
loan balance of $26,649. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not available for
operating purposes.

Cornerstone's use of the residual receipts account is contingent upon HUD's prior
written approval. Residual receipts of $6,454 and $3,003 were held in a segregated
accpunt for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Under the regulatory agreement, Cornerstone is required to set aside amounts for the
return of resident paid deposits. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 $4,391 and $4,390,
respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are not available for
operating purposes.
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TRI.CQUNTY CQMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30; 2023 AND 2022

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of Cornerstone's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The. policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above. Cornerstone was required to remit funds
to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30, 2022.

NHTFIfi SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 13, 2023, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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NORTH CONVC'AV

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

\Ne have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and
2022, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023. and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 13.
2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opiriion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or.operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is, a
deficiency, or a com.bination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did-not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other fVIatters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests,
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an ojstnion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemmenf Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this commuriication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13. 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Fedora/ Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Tri-County Comrnunity Action
Program, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. complied, in alt material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 'that could have a direct and
material effect'on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroiler General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described In the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compiiance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion oh compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Prograni, Inc. s compliance
with the compiiance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design implementation, and maintenance of effective internal cbntroi over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to"Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or eiror, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s compliance based on pur
audit Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when- it exists. The risk of not detecting matenal noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusiori.
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of ihterna' JPb
.Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is f
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Tn-County Community
Action Program. Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

.  fdettify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures,
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

.  Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s intema
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the puipose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, In the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompljance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.. A material weakness in
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over corhpliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control
over cpmpliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal prograrh that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal cbhtrol over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingty, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway. New Hampshire
November 13, 2023
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Trl-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the.audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other traders Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. Np instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Ma/or Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report oh compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included;

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Emergency Solutions
Grant Program-ALN 14.231

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds - ALN 2T027

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,125,160.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS ■ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ̂ MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Board of Directors
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Bpard Chair

Sandy Alonzo

Business

Brian Hoffman
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Low Income
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Business

Melissa Mullen

Business
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Low Income

Linda Massimilla

Elected Official
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Business Attorney
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PY25 SEAS

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

t'

Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $0.00 $132,000.00

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $0.00 $96,239.78

Brenda Gagne Chief Program Officer $0.00 $84,159.92

Scott Boisvert Department Head $0.00 $65,000.00

Michelle Sanchagrin Program Director $0.00 $50,000.00



Jeanne 1j. Robillard

irnnK CTBEiyfeTMS
Program dcvclopmcnr. managtmenr and adminiscrarion ♦ Communicy collaborations

Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet^fupder standards
Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting

Innovaiivc solutions & pioblcm solving • Capacity building
Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking

Dctlicadon * Imagjnadon ♦ Dciermination ♦ Fortitude

P^nirFSSiniVAi, EXPEMENCE

Tri-Coiinty Commiuu<x Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Exccnfivc Officer
Berlui, IVU * 20iO - curron* FT employmont

Tri-Coooty Commomity Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Operating Officer
Derlin. NH 2016-2018
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; racdcal oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service iniriativcs. Provide tactical guidance to Division Director."! to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Trt-Cooiiiy Commanity Action Prngromc. Inc.
Di>-uion Director: TCCAP Prevention Services
Derlui, Nil 2015-2010
Responsible for four agcnc)' programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
di\'ision resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; wntc grants
to support, programs, morutor results, and prepare grant rcpoTO and financial statements for funders
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategics for programs; represent program through
patricipadon in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service deliver)-;
coUaboratc with stakeholdccs and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

TrI-Counly ConuDonlly Action Progriima, inc.
Program/Divuiion Director: Support Center at Borch llooae
liittletoD, New Hampchirc 2007-2015

Oversee dally opccadon and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditure.^, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law, deyclop
fundraising and marketing strategics; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim,
services; represent program"in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; acatc and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JLRobillard*2

Bookkeeper: Women's Rornl Enlre^rcncuriol jVelwork IWIIEIV)
DcthJehem, IVH ;cMrrM< I*T cmplo^tneni

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciiiadons for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-Couitij Commanil.r Aclion Programs, Inc.
DirccI Serviccs/Volonieer Coordmalor: Support Center at Rbrck lloose
Liitleton. New llompshire 1997 fu 3007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of doincstic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recniit, train and supeo'isc staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency sj^tcms,
policies and protocols; create and present communit)' outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line •

Dircclor: llayiirhill Area JoTenile Diversion Program
Woodjwille, New Oompshirc I999-3001
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Counsclor/TUIe I Tcaehcr: Norihern Pamilv Insii^ale-Jeilerson Sbcllcr
Jcficrson, New Hampshire I990>1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implemcnf treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edncation

DS in Hnmao Servietis, Springfield College School of Homan Scrvlecs. Boslon, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Craduated with 4.0 CPA

AS in Drug ond Alcohol RehabilKntion Cpunsclmg (IIAItC Progroml
Soulhem Connccticot ComtnoiiitT College, New Haven, CT

Addiiinnnl jSkills-Proicsisional LcndcrsMp and Civic

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice RIcctcd 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-199H
♦ Chairman, HavcrhiU Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003
♦ Ccttifted PRIMB FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH1<5199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; Indiriduaf Member 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015

♦ Bethlehem Con.'ccr\'ati<jn Commission 2006 - current

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Gtizcn's Advisorj'Committee on Recycling 2007-2010
♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner: Aurora Energies 2015- cumnt
Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current
Member, United Stares Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute atrrent since. 1993

♦



R.A N D. a L L S . P 1 L O.TTE

Summary

Accounting profosional with ovct 29 ycarsof experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payablcs Inventory Fixed Ass^
Payroll Bank Rccoriciliatioris Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITV ACTION PROGRAM INC.. Berlb. NH 06/2013-Prcsenl

CFO (2017-Present) .. .. .
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify pcrfonnance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to moniiorperform^ce against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of $ 18M.

Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies.
As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs.
Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.

Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP'S facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.
Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each properly.

Prepared fivis-ycar debt reduction plan.

fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016 -2017)

Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger,.payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets-
Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.
Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expcn.sc accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.
Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.
Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC. ff/Wa Blue Seal Fccds..lnc.)rrCondondenY. NH . 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and ycarcnd close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
Individual financial statement in accordance with CAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staffaecountaniresponsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

• Oversaw all aspects of propricia.ry.software, multi-staw.payroM system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and Slate payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll cleric.

•  Interfaced vyith 18 various batiks throu^oul New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits^
•  Pro-activcly coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accruals.

•  Assisted and rcspondied to auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoice^ employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989

Assdclatc Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Franklin Pierce ColleOE. Concord, NH



Brenda Gagnc
Chief Program Officer

Tri County Community Action Program Inc.

Professional Summary:
Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAF's Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Experience:

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020 - Present
Department Head, Economic Supports
6/5/2022 Chief Programs Officer

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit

31 Pleasant St.
Berlin NH 03570

5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Responsibilities include;
Overseeing the operations and administrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northern Grafton and Carroll Counties.

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St

Berlin NH 03570
7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
•Running the daily operations of a publjc transit and para transit service.
•Facility Management.
•Gathering statistics
•Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and SEAS.
•Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
•Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
•Creating procedure manuals
•Grant writing
•Budget preparation
•Writing Warrant Articles
•Drug & Alcohol Testing
•Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village Construction
P.O. Box 96

MUan,N.H. 03588
5/1995- 1/2004

Accounts Manager/Office Manager

Responsibilities included;
♦Customer service.
•Accounting using Quick Books Pro.



•Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
♦Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
•Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
•Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
•Data Entry.
•Phonie communications and general secretarial duties.
Milan Parks and Recreation Dept
P.O. Box 300
Milan> N.H. 03588
6/1997 - 3/2002
Parks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities included;
•Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the •
Towns of Milan, West Mil^, and Dununcr.

•Development of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yearly budgets.
•Equipment and materials purchasing.
•Organizing and supervising a large VoUmteer staff.
•Working with the public to create new programs.
•Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
•Applying for Federal and State Grants.
Education:

• Graduate Gorbam High School
Gorham NH

•  Granite State College
Emergency Management

•  Souihem New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Courses
Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of Facilities Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.
Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportation Association of America
June 2009

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri State Transit Conference
9/2007, 10/2008, 10/2010,9/2011. 9/2013,9/2014. 9/2016,9/2017
Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical CoUcge
Berlin NH 10/2005



Scott Boisvert
Highly effective Operations Manager with 15 years of experience.

EXPERIENCE

Tri-Cdunty Community Action Program, Berlin, NH
Economic Supports Department Head

202A-PRESENT

Ensure iKc efTcciivc and el^cient opcmiion of the Economic Supports progmms at

TCCAP. Pcrfonn and monitor funcrions invotviiiij thcdqjnrtmetti, including

management and su})er\'isk)n oT.these'programs. :md employees. Areas include

Opemiicns. compliance. super>'ision, discipline, evaluation, interyicvWng and

rccornntcitdation orhiring and prontotioiis in order to carry out the mission ofTCCAP.

SKILLS

New Business Development

Conflict Resolution

Budgeting

Leadership

Efficiencies

Safety Managerhent

AWARDS

TrUCounty Community Action Program, Berlin, NH
Mobility Manager Region 2

2022 - 2024

Work towards expanding transportation options and developing new
sustainable transportation options to serve the communities within the
region.

DiSilva Heating, North Conway, NH
Service Apprentice

2021 • 2022

HVAC installations and service.

Rymes Propane & Oil, Ossipee, NH
Division Manager

2017-2021

Manage retail operations, sales, marketing, customer service and an
employee team of 12 as well as DOT regulations and safety compliance.

Amerigas, Phoenix, AZ
Western Region Manager

2014.2017

Managed operating expenses, cost effective quality products
marketing programs throughout the Western Region. Managed and
ensured corhpliance with safety codes & policies as well as staffing &
development Including employee Customer Service skills &
management.

2009 - Western Region; Region
of the Year

2010 - Western Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Budget

20h - Northeast Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year,
EBITA, Regioh''pf the Year, Eagle
Award for Packaging Cost vs.
Prior Year, Patriotic Employee
Recognition

2012 - Northeast Re^on;
Packaging Cost vs. Budget,
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year,
Outstanding Productivity,
Region of the Year, Eagle Award
for Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year

201A' Western Region;
Outstanding Safety
Performance, Outstanding
Productivity Results



Amerigas, Northfield, NH & Gardena, CA
Operations Manager

2009-2014

Managed operations at production facilities. Managed large teams of
employees at each facility including training in safety and compliance.

Amerigas, Northfield/Laconia, NH & Lewiston, ME
Operations Supervisor

2006-2009

Supcrvisor.ln ACE wash/fill facilities. Managed district and area
deliveries as well as a team of employees which includes training in
various tasks and safety protocols.

EDUCATION

Andover Community College, Business Management

2001-2002

NH Technical Institute, Business Management

2009



Michele Claire Sanschagrin

Objective

My goal is to be able to work with and to help the public as much as possible while putting my
degree to good use. I graduated in May of 2002 with an associate's degree in Computer Technology. 1
am a hard and dedicated employee that loves working with people. I am a team player and a self-starter.

Experience

TrI-County Community Action Berlin, NH
Director of Energy Assistance Services ^ July 2024 to present

Overall site operations and team process management, ensuring compliance with terms and
conditions of funding grants and applicable regulations. In charge of hiring capable and
competent staff and ensuring appropriate training. Conduct reviews on staff and management.
Managing program and agency budget development and authorizing of expenditures according to
contracted budget agreements. Develop positive public relations and communications in the
community. Attend relevant training and workshops to maintain professional knowledge and
skills.

Tri-County Community Action Berlin, NH
Operations Manager June 2021 to July 2024

Conducting day-to-day operations of the Fuel and Electric Assistance Program.
Addressing staff questions, emails, calls and client/vendor questions. Conducting weekly,
quarterly, monthly and annual reimbursement reports with the state. Rectifying HAP
transmission failures, handle moves and transfers, interact with utilities customer
accounts and transmissions, remove cases from program, iroubleshoot and resolve case
issues.

Tri-County Community Action Berlin, NH
Lead Cenifier/A 16 Coordination November 24, 2015 to June 2021

Overseeing Fuel and Electric Assistance certification processing-, including Assurance 16
coordination programming in compliance with program regulations, procedures and
client confidentiality. In charge of training certifierVintake staff and will address the
Community Contact Office staff questions, emails, calls and clients/vendor questions.

AVH Berlin, NH
Account Specialist June 25, 2004 to November 2004

I now work in the billing office at Androscoggin Valley Hospital. 1 deal mainly with customer
accounts and government insurance companies. I make sure all bills go out to the insurance
companies accurately and in a timely matter. I follow up on reminders by calling and/or checking



online. I also try to please our patients as much as possible by helping them understand their
claims and doing as much as I can to get them paid. At this time, I am in between billing
Medicare claims and helping out with the cashiering/data entry. We have been short two cashiers.
We recently hired two new cashiers and I am training them in their positions along with billing
Medicare claims. I am the "go to" person for questions in both departnxents and I also work
reports that the billers used to do.

AVH Berlin, NH

Cashier/Data Entr)' August 2004 to November 2004

I worked in the billing office as a cashier and a data entry operator. I keyed in charges, worked
credit reports, reconciled the day and took care of customers at the counter.

TN Teletnarketing Berlin, NH
Phone operator April 2005 to October 2005

I worked in an office for the Eastern Slope Inn Resort, North Conway NH and for Atliiash
Mountain Resort, Barilctt NH trying to get customers to^go in for a tour.

AVH Berlin, NH
Dietary Aid March 16, 2004 to August 2004

I worked in the kitchen as a dishwasher, cleanup crew and kitchen helper full time.

JC Pcnney Berlin, NH
Cashier and Catalog June 2001 to April 2004

I worked with the public and I sold merchandise.

Cordon Humphrey Campaign Office Berlin, NH
Phone Survey Conductor April 2002 to September 2002

Conducted phone surveys and invitations to meetings.

AG Supermarket Berlin, NH
Cashier, deli clerk, office personal, grocery clerk March 2001 to June 2001

I had the same responsibilities at AG Supermarket because Clarkeies closed and AG look over.

Milan Variety Milan, NH
Cashier January 2001 to April 2001

I worked every Sunday as a part time cashier.

Clarkeies Market LLC Berlin, NH

Cashier, deli clerk, office personnel, grocery clerk May 2000 to March 2001

1 worked in the office, taking care of the money and the banking. I also worked with its database
for the total income that the store made. I worked as a cashier for quite a while and as a deli clerk.



Milon Variety
Wail'rcss/Cooic

I was a waitress and a cook at this small restaurant.

Milan, NH

1996

Education
Berlin High School
General

Berlin, NH

Additional Education
NHCTC

Associates degree in Computer Technology.

Berlin, NH

May 2002

1 have taken classes in Computers and Operating Systems I & 2, Windows and Word Processing,
Spreadsheets, Database Management, College Composition,.Algebra & Trigonometry 1 & 2,
Electricity and Electronics, Micro Computer Hardware, Object Oriented Programming with Java
1 & 2, Technical Writing, Networking I and Sociology.
I also took U.S. and the Great Depression (History), Software Seminar, Software Design,
Networking 2 and Database Development.

References

Emily Edger (Past AVH Director)
Director of R(*v>nne'Cvclpflt-Spha<?tirnnk Valley Hospital

Annette Dubreuil (Co-Worker)..

Nathan.Corrigan (Family Friend)



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER Anll:03
JmdS.Chicora IW735-2964

^  Tel{603)271-3670
DEPUTY COMyDSSIONER
CMKoptoJ.Ebm. Jr. ' FAX Na 27MS260^

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S.FnjttSL. Suite 10
Concord. NiH. 03301-2429

V«bsle:

MMfw.energy.nh.gov

October 24.2022

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sunimu
and the Honorable Counci}

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

The Department of Energy respectfully requests authorization to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract
with Tri-County Community Action Program Inc., (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $15,503 for
the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Pro^am, effective upon Govemor and Executive Council
approval through September 30,2025. 100% Other Funds (NH DHHS).

Funds are available in the account below as follows for FY23 and are anticipated to be available in FY24
and FY25 upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in (he future operating budget, widi
the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
ne^ed and justified.

NH Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

02-52-52-5200I0-3354000(W)74-500587 ^

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $5,814- $7,751 $1,938

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fiicl Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The Senior Energy
AssistarKe Services (SEAS) Program makes home energy more affordable for households with members
who are sixty years of age or older, who arc experiencing a home energy hardship, and who are not
eligible for the state's Fuel Assistance Program under the current Income limits. The CAAs determine
eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and are able to efficiently distribute these funds to households
in need that are not eligible for that program.

A federal grant under the Older Americans Act funds (Title IllB) awarded to the New Hampshire
iDcpartment of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS) Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides
funding for the Senior Energy Assistance Services Program. A Memorandum of Understanding for this
program was previously approved by the Govemor and Executive Council on March 23,2022, item #25.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully Submitted,

Gared Chicoine

Commissioner



Awanl:210lKHOASS

FORM NUMBER P07 (vertloo 12/11/2019)

Notice: Thb ■pconcQi and iDof iit attachmenti shill become public upon nibmbsion lo Ooveraorand
Executive CoancS for ipprovaL Any infonnalioa that b private, confidential or proprktaiy must
b« cleariy identified to the a^ncy and afreed to in writing prior to dgnini the contra ct.

agreement
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mumaBy agree as roOows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

l.l State Aceacy Name
New Kampshtfe Department of Energy

1.2 State Agency Addieea
21 So.Fiuil Street,Ste. 10
Concord, New Hampthire 03301

IJ ContraetorNafflc
TrrCounty Comavoity Actioa Progrtm. Inc.

1.4 Cooiractor Addieas
30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03S70

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603)752-700!

1.6 Account Number
02-S2-52-520010-
3354000D-074-500587

52SEA523

1.7 Completbn Date
September 30,2025

1.8 Price Limitation
SI5.503

1.9 ConincthgOfTicerforSuieAgency
Eileen Smigbvnki, Fuel Assistance Piogiam AdminisiTator

1.10 Slate Agency Tetephone htumber
(603)271-8317

t.|] Contra^SigM^ ^ 1.12 NameandTkleofContiaciorSigDitory
Jeanoe RobtBard. CEO

1.13 State Agency Signatuie 1.14 Name and Tkle of State Agency Si^iatoTy
Jared Chicoine, Corainmioncr

\p Approval by the NH. Department of AdmoiKiiiiOD.DivBiDnof Penonnel (ifeppheabU)
f  By: Director, On: .
1.16 Appiova 1 by the Anom^ Genera 1 (Form, SubsUncc and Execution) (if applicabtt)

By:

1,17 Approvalby the Oovemor and Executive CourKfl (f opplieabU)OACltem number (o^ 04C Meeting Dete: ^OV 2 2 2022
I

Page 1 of 5
Contractor Initials

Date
TCCA2101NHOASS

CFDA#93.044



Award: 2101NHOASS

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Kampihire, acting thrbui^ the agctKy identified in block I.l
("Slate'Ot cnpgei contractor identified in block 1.3
f Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shaDpcrfotm. the
«oik or sale of ̂ ds, or both, identifted and more panicularly
descnbed in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference C*Sefvices"X

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETiON OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provisbn of this Apeement to the
contraty, tod subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe Slate of New Hampshire,ifapplicabte,
ths Agreement, and a 0 obligations of the parties hcrcuoder, sba U
become effective on the date the Oovcmor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless oosucb approval is required, in which case (he Agreement
sha U become effective on the date the Agreement is si^cd by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
12 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EITcctive Da te, all Services pciformcd by the Coniractorprior to
tlje Effective Dale shall be perfoimed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and m the event (hat this Agreement does not become
effective, the State ihaO have no Uabiity to the Contractor,
hchiding without limhation, any obt^tion to pay the
Contractor for any costa mcurred or Services performed.
Contractor mu.ti complete aD Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATVRE OF AGREEMENT.
Noiwiibsiinding any provtsioT) of this Agreement to the
contrary, aD obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limilation, (he continuance of payments hereunder. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriatiDn of
funds affected by any state or federal legbhttve or execulK-e
action that reduces, eliminates or othetwoe modifcs the
ippropria tion or ava QabiGty of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such avaUableappropnated funds. In (he
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have tberi^t to withhold payment until such funds
becomeava^ble.if aver, and shall bava (ha right to reduce or
teiminata the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transferfunds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 b ibe
event funds in (hat Account are reduced orunavaibble.

5. CONTRACT PRJCE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment,and termsofpayramt
are identified and more particularly descr^d m EXHIBIT C
which b mcorponicd herein by reference.
3.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimburKmeni to the Contractor for all

expenses, of whatever nature mcurred by the Contractor n tbe
performance hereof, and shaU be (he only and the complete
compensa tbn to the Contractor for the Services. Tbe Sla te shaO
have no Kabfltty to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5J The Stale reserves the right to offset from any amouns
othcrwbe payabletothe Contractorunderlhb Agreement those
liquidated amounts required ur permilled by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7*c or any other provbtpn of law.
5.4 Noiwithstandbg any provbion b (hb Agreement to the
contrary, and notwkhstandng unexpected circumstances, m no
event sha D the toialofaO payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitatbn set forth m block 1.8.

6.CO.MPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of tbe Services, the
Contractor shaD comply with aU apphcabte statutes, laws,
regubtbns, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities w4iich impose any obligalbn or duty upon tbe
Contractor, inctudbg, but not limited to, civ3 rî ts andeqial
cmpioymenropportunitybv^. Inaddition.ifthbApvementb
funded b any part by monies of the United States, tbe Contractor
shall comply with all fedenlexecutiveorden, rubs, regulations
and statutes, and with any rubs.regulaiions and guidelaies as tbe
Stale or the United States bsue to tropbroeni these regulations.
The Cuntractorshallabo comply with all applicibb mteDeciual
property bws.
62 During the term of thb Agreement, the Contractor shaQ not
dbcriminate against employees or appUcania for employmatt
bccauseofnce.color, religion, creed, agc.sex, handicap,sexual
orientation,ornatlonalorigin andwill lake a Hlnnative action m
prevent such discrtmina (ion.
6.3. The Contractor agrees lu pennit the State or United States
accesstoanyoftheConiractor'sbooks,Tecordsandaccounsfi3r
the purpose of ascerta inmgcompliance with a D robs, regubtbns
and orden, and the covenants, terms and condiibns of thb
Agreement.

7. PERSONNXL.

7.1 The Contractor shaU at its own expense provide a D personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Conrractorwarrantsthai
all penorinel engaged in the Servbes ahaQ be qualified to
pcrfomi the Services, and sbaU be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so undcraU appBcabb bws.
72 Unbss otherwise authorized in wrbbg, during the term of
thb Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
CompbibnDate in bbck l.7.theContnctorshaUnothire. and
shall not permit any aubcootractor or other person, firm or
corporilbn with whom it b engaged b a combrcd effort to
perform the Services to hire, anyperaonwhob oStaicempbyee
or official, who b materially involved b the procurement,
adrnmbiraibn or performance of thb Apcemcni. Thb
provbion shall survive termbaibn of thb Agreement.

Page 2 of 5
Contractor Initials

Date i0l30le^
TCCA2101NHOASS

CFDA^3.044
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7 J Th« ContracUngOfftcer specified tn block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shtO be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decisioD shatlbe fmal for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the foUowiag acts or omissions of the
ContnclorshaU constitute an event of default hereunderC'Event
ofDefauh"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services tatofactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perfomi anyothercovenant.tenu orcondition of
thb Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occummcc of any Event ofDefauh.the State may
take any one. or more, or aQ, of the foDowingaciioni;
82.1 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification oftime.thbly (30) days from the
date oflhc noikc; and if ihe Event of Ocfaub is not timely cured,
tenninate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of term nation;
8.2.2 gjvc the Contractora »rritien notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under (bb
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the.contract price
which would otherwise accrue to Ihe Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such trne as the State
determines that the Contiactorhas cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor.
823 the Contractora wrinen notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obii^tioos the State may
owe to Ihe Contrsctorany damages the State suffen by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
82.4 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
E)efauli. treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue a ny of its remedies a t la w or in equity, or
both.

8 J. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof afia
any Eventof Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event ofDefa uh shal
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
an of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Nocwithstaoding poragrapb 8. the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminaiethe Agreement foranyreason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
92 In the event of an eatly termination of thb Agreement for
any reaMn other than Ihe coropletbn of the Scrvicea. the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

ConlractingOfrtcer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after (he date
nf termination, a report ("Termination Report'! descrftiing in
dcta'iJ tU Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject inatta;
content, and numbcrof copies of the Termination Report shaD
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBITS. Inadditiun.ai the Stale's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 daysof notice of early termination,develop and
submit to the State a Transition Pbn for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/C0NFIDENT1AL1TV/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in thb Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
mformation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, thb
Agreement, including but not Umired to, all studies, reports,
files, formube, surveys, mops, charts, sound recordings, video
recordbgs, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, pa pets, and documents, a II whether
fmbhed or uofinbhed.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under thb Agreement, sha II be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the Stale upon deraaod or upon teitnioation
of thb Agreement forany reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shaQ be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter9l-Aorotherextsling bw. Disclosure of data requires
priorwriiien approvaloftbeStaie.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inihe
performance of thb Agreement the Contractor b in all respecu
an independent contractor, and b nekhn an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contnctornor any of iu
orfkcn. employees, agents or memben shaD have authority to
bind the Siateor receive any benefits, wodcers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delegation/subcontracts.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, orotherwbe transferany
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the Slate at least fifteen (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of the paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidaiioD.or a transaction orseries ofrebled transactions in
which a third party, together whh its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of (he
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
potver oftbe Contractor,or (b) the sale of all or subsuntmHya!]
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shaQ be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
Tlie State b entitbd to copies of all subcontracts and auignment
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Award: 2IOINHOASS

tgreemenls andshaD not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or to assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

U. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by taw,
the Contmctor shall bdemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and aganst any and all cbims,
liabilities and costs for anypersonaUnjury or property damages,
pa tent orcopyright bfringemenl, orotherclatms asserted aga inst
the Stale, its ofncers or employees, which arise out of (or ̂ itich
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractors, bcludtng but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or bteniional conduct. The Sta ic sha U not
be Uabk for any costs beurred by the Contractor a risbg under
this paragraph 13. Noiwithstandbgthe foregob^nothbg hcrcb
conta bed sha Dbe deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. covenant m paragraph 13 shaQ survive the
termbatbn of thb Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expose, obiab and
coDtbuoosiy mabtab b forae. and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtab and mabtab b force, the
foDowbg bsorance:
14.1.1 commercial general liabflily bsunnce agabst aQ cbimt
of bodily mjuo', death or property damage, b amounts of not
less than SI.0<^,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000 aggregate
orexcess;8nd
14.1.2 qtecial cause of loss coverage formcoverbg all property
subject to subparagreph 10.2 hereis.b an amount not less than
80% of (be whole repbcemeni value of the property.
14J Thcpofictes described b tubparagraph 14.1 hcrebshaU be
on policy formsandertdonemenisappTOved foruse b the State
of New Hampshire by the Nii. Department of Insurance, and
issued by bsurets licensed b the Slate of New Hampshire.
14 J The Contractor ihaD furnish to the Contnclbg Officer
identified b block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certifica ie(s) of
bsurance for aQ bsurance required under tbb Agreement.
Contreelorshallabo furnish to the ContractbgOfficer identified

b block 1.9, or bis or her successor, certirieatc(s) of bsurance
for a D renews l(s) ofbsuranccrequvcd underthts Agreement no
bter than ten (10) days prior to the expiratbn date of each
bsurance policy. The certlfKale<s) of bsurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are bcorporated heren by
reference.

15. WORKERS* COMPCNSATION.
IS.I By signbg this agreement, theContrectoragrces, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor b b compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA ehapter281 -A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
IS2 To the exicot the Contractor b subject to the requirements
ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A Contractor fbaQ mabtab. and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure andmabtar.

payment of Workers* Compensation b connectbn with
actrvitbs which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to thit
Agreement. TheConiractorsballfumisbtheContrectbgOniccr
identified b block 1.9, orhb or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation b the manner descrbed b N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shad be
attached and are bcorporated bereb by reference. The Slate
shall not be responsblc for payment of any Workers'
Cornpcnsatbn prembmsor for any other elatm or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which mi^t arise under applicable State of New Hampshie
Workers* Compeasatbn laws b connectbn with the
performance of the Services under ihb Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given atthe time
ofmailbg by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses gtven b
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, hereb.

17. amendment. This A^emcnt maybeamended,waived
or discharged only by an bstrumeot b writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such smcodcDcnl,
waiver or discharge by ihe Governor and Executive Couned of
the Slate of New Hampshirt unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Slate bw, rule orpol^.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, bterpreted and construed b accordance with the
bws of the State of New Hampshire, and is bbdbg upon and
bures lo ihcbcneril ofthe parties and their respective successors
andsssigns. The wordbg used mthb Agreement blbe wordbg
chosen by the panbs to express their mutual btent, and no rule
of const ructbn shall be applied agabstor b favorof any parly.
Any actbns arbmg out of this Agreement dia U be brou^i and
mabiabed b New Hampshire Superbr Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confhct

between the terms of thb P-37 form (as modified b EXHIBIT
A) aod/orattachmcntsandamcndmcnt thereof, the terms of the
P07 (as modified b EXHIBIT A) shall conrtol.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not btend to
benefit any third parties and thb Agreement shaQ not be
construed to confer any such benefti.

21. HEADINGS. The headbgsthrou^out the Agreement are
for reference purposes onl>', and Ihe words contabed Ibereb
shall b noway be held to c.tpbb, modify, ampUfyoraid b the
bierpreiaiion, construction or meanbgof (he provbbns of thb
Agreement.
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22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addhional or modifying
provisions SCI forth in the anachcd EXHIBIT A are >ncorpora«<d 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemenl, which maybe
herein by reference. executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be

deemed an original, constitutes, the entire agreement and
23. SEVERABILITY. Intheeventanyofthcprovisionsofthis understanding between the parties, and lupcnedes all prior
Agreemenl are held by a court of competent jurisdiciion to be agreements and understandings with respect to thesubjcct miow
contrary to any state or federal bw, the remainbg provisions of hereof.
this Agreement will remain in fUll force and effect.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1  On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall deliver to
the State an independent audit of the Contractor's enrire agency by a qualified independent auditor in
good standing with the state and federal govemmenL

l.I This audit shall be conducted in accoidance with the audit requirements of the 2 CFR 200.
Subject F-Audit Requirements.

12 This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contractor or pnt
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

1.3 The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years questioned costs along with an agency
response to the status of the prior years questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB letters written as
a result of audits shall be forwarded to NHDOE. The audit shall be forwarded to NHDOE
within one month of the time of receipt by the agency, accompanied by an action plan for
each finding or questioned cost.

2 The costs charged under this Agreemeni shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in CFR 200 Subpart E- Cost Principles.

3  Program and financial records pertaining to this Agreement shall be retained by the agency for
3(thrcc) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2-CFR 200.333 0
Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

4  No portion ofthc ftjods paid under this Agreement may be for the purpose of obtaining additional ■
Federal funds under any law ofthc United States, except is authorized under the law.

5  CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be submitted
to the State within thirty (30) days ofthc completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

6  The Department reserves the right to extend this ogrecmcni for up to two(2) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, writtcti agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and Executive (Council.

7  Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State,
hcrcundcr. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in p^. unda this
Agreement arc contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation <r
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided m Exhibit B, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the Slate be liable for any payments hcrcunder in excess

TCOSEAS2J
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of appropriated or available funds. In the cvcti of a reduction, tcrminaiion or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The Slate shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under
this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, lamination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfa funds from any otha source or account into
the Accountfs) identified in block 1.6 of the Genaal Provisions. Account Numba. Or any otha
account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Amend paragraph 9.2 of the General Provisions by deleting the sentence: "The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Tennination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit B."

Amend paragraph 9 of the Genaal Provisions by adding the following subparagraphs:

9.3 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early lamination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services unda the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving saviccs under the Agrconcnt and
establishes a process to meet those needs.

9.4 The Contractor shall fully coopaalc with the State and shall promptly provide deuiled ioformaticr
to support the Transition Plan, including but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination ofthe Agreement and Transition Plan and rfvall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

9.5 In the evoii thai services urtdci the Agrciemcni, including but not limited to clients receiving services
unda the Agreement are transiiioDcd to having services delivacd by anotha entity including contraaed
providas or the State, the Contractor shall providea process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
transition Plan.

9.6 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and otha affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as desaibed above.

TCCASEAS23
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT B J

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Senior Energy Assistance Services to qualified low-income.individuals
and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the program in accordance
with the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance Program Proc^ures manual and the
other guidance as determined by the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NHDOE).

Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) will be defined to include the following categories:

1  Outreach, eligibility dcterminarion, and certitlcation of SEAS applicants.

2  Payments directly to energy vendors:
A Reimbursement for goods and services delivered.

3  Emcrgcrtcy Assistance In the form of reimbursement for goods or services.

TCCASEAS2) Vjfi—/
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT C

payment TERMS

In consideration of the saiisf«ciory pcrforiTuince of the services as dcicrmined by the Stale, the Siaic agrees to
pay over to the Contractor the sum of $15,503.00 (which hCTcinaftcr Is referred to as the "funds")

The following funds will be authorized:

$15,503.00 for Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS)

The dales for this contract are upon Governor and Executive Council approval through Scpiembcr 30, 2025.

Approval to obligate the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New Hampshire Department
of Energy to the Contractor. Reimbursements will be made to the Contractor only aAer written docun^cntation
of cash needed is submitted to the State. Disbursement of these funds shall be in accordance with procedures
established by the State.

TCCASEAS2J nji
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151 -5160 oflhc Drug»Frce Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 106-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 ct scq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et scq.). The January 31,1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681 -21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) oflhc regulationprovides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractois) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates forcach grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set oul below is a material reprcsentaiionof fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant False certification orviolalion of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or goyemmcnt-wide suspension or debarment Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord. NH 0330)

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the {pantee s wori^lace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violalioD of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a dnig-frec workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees fordnig abuse violations occurring in

the workplace.

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and

P37 Exhbits D tbruH .
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(C)

(0

CERTIFlCAnON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES < CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(2) notify tbe employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days afier such conviction.

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofiicer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numbcr(8) of each affected gram;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking approprime personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
terminatioti, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c). (d). (c). and (0-

<B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitc(s) for (he performance of work done in
com>ectipn with the specific grant.

Place of Pcrfonnance (street address, city, coumy, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check Q if (here are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

lr.-Coo.iiVt. Pbtwoiuo^^lfVdo^PcBfifwa.i'MC-
CoQtractof Name ^

September 21,2022 to September 30.2025

Period covered by this Certification .

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

Com epftsentative Signature Date

SEAS2101NHOASS
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of ̂  General Provisions agrees (o comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 10I*]21, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1. 12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certincation:

CERTinCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
SEAS

Contract Period: September 21.2022 to September 30,2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by oron bchnlf of theundersigried, to any
person for infltiencing or attempting to influence an offica or employee of any ageitcy. a member of
Congress, an oDlcer or employee of Coogress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, gram, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub'grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or wilt be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Cortgress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a mender of Congress in ttnnection with this fiederaJ
contract, gtanl, l^n, or co(f>erative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undciaigncd shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying";
in accotdancc with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document Ux
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and thai all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordin^y.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this tiansaction was
made or entered into. Sidrmission of this certification is a prerequisite for maldng or eraering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required ceriificatioo shall be
subject to a civilp&ialtynfootlless than $10,000 and not more than S 100.000 for each such failure.

C£i
Coanm Representau^ Signature Contractor's Representative Title

/p/<9s/9g.
ConiraWrNamc ^ ^ Date

$£AS3I01KHOASS
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provLsions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmcnt, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBIUTV MATTERS • PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a personlo provide the cenification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the ceitificaiioft. The certification orcxplanation will be considered in connection
with the NH DOE's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective
primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation offact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE detemiined to enter into dtis transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition lo other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospcdive primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE a^ncy to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification wascrroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant.""person," "primary covered transaction," "prindpal,""proposai,"and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the nrles
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45. CFR Part 76. Sec the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submilling this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a pcnon who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospectivcprlmary participant futihcr agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Dcbannent, Suspension, Incligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactioos," provided by NHpOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which itdctenninesthe eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing conlainoi in the foregoing shall be construed to rcqu ire estaWishmcnl of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required lo exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction, for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Cenijlcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsiblliiy Matters • Primary Covered Transactions

(1) " The prospective primary participant certifies to the bcst.of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, pressed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (eoniract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or pcrfomiing a public (federal, stale or local)
transaction or a contract undero public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission ofen^>ezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) arcnotprescntly indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and ^

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default;

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certi/lcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineUgibitity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participartts)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for dcbamient, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this mmsactlon by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant funheragrccs by submining th'is proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," withCW modification in all lower tier-covered trarBaciions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered tfui^cU ms. \ \

•  fSo

fcoyciV^.nic.
Contractor Name Date

P37ExhfcitsDihn)H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH.DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signaitirc of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections I. I! and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute Ae following
certification:

By signingand submitting this proposal (contract), tlic Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

C£o
Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

"Tf-f lt)l 1
Contractor Name ^ ^ Date

P37 Exhbiis O (bni H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERG V

^  STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTmCATION
Pablic Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance vvilh Pan C of Public Law 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of 1994", smokingmay not be pemiittcd
10 any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children unda the age of 18, if the services arc funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply lo children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Mcdicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
trcannenl.

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children's services and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to S1.000 per day.

Ceo
Contractor Representative SYj^ature Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name ^ d D^tc

P37 Exbibhs D thru H

SEAS2IOINHOASS , ~
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EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBUGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Exhibit I

STATE

Fk«td/30/2022 admin; FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

6.623,990.009.646.370.00 82.200.00 357.200.00

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIQATED

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

S38.220.0a

1.165.551.00
4.460,819.00.

0.00

82.200.00

0.00

357.200.00

1.165,551.00
5,458.439.00

BMCA

First 9/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCeie TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 96,663.00 1.003.566.00 12.905.00 69.980.00 1.182.114.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

95.663.00

207.112.00

796.474.00
0.00

12.905.00

0.00

69.M0.00

207,112.00
975.002.00

8NHS

First 9/30/2022 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 163.777.00 s  1.718.152.00 34.968.00 64,220.00 2,001,117.00 J

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 354.578.00 0.00 0.00 354,878.00 J

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

ie3,7n.oo

354.578.00

1,363,574.00
0.00

34.968.00

0.00

64,220^)0

354.578.00
1.646.539.00

SOS

Fir«l9/3Q/2022 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 83,635.00 879.501iK> 11,821.00 64.960.00 1,040,117.00 J

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBUGATEO 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 181.504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

83,835.00

181.504.00

697,997.00
0.00

11,821.00

0.00

64,060.00
181.504.00

858^613.00

CAPSC

Fni 9/30/2022 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 54.676.00 S73.S93UI0 7.003.00 55,110.00 690.382.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBUGATEO 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

{THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 118.373.00 0.00 0.00 116,373.00 J

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

54,676.00

118.373.00
458.220.00

0.00

7,003.00

0.00

55.110.00

118,373.00

972,009.00

TCCA
Frst 9^0/2022 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS

IS S03 00

ASSURANCE 16

62.050.00

TOTAL

1.710.260.00 1
ICONTRACTED BUDGET
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBUGATEO 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

iTHlS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 0.00 303,^.00 J

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

140,269.00

303.984.00

1.167.554.00

0.00

15.503.00

0.00

82,950.00
303.984.00
1.406.276.00

SEAS2IOINHOASS

CFDAf9}.0H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBITJ

CERTIFICATION REGARDINGTHE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardccs of
Individual federal grants equal to or greater titan $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to
report on data related lo executive compensation and associated first'ticrsub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {ReportingSub^ard and Executive Compensation Information),
the New Hampshire DepartncntofEnergy must report thefollowinginformalion for any sub-award or
contract award subject lo the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity

2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (UEl ft)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. Morcthan SOVoofanmialgrossrevenuesarcfromtheFcdcralgovemmeniand those
revenues ore greater than S25M annually, and

b. Compcnsarion information is not already available through reporting lb the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-required data by the end of the month phis 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

/

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 ofthe Gmcral Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252,and 2CFRPart \lQ(Reporllng Suh-award and Executive Compensation Information),and fwthff
agrees to have the Contactor's representative, as identified in Sections I. II and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

The below flamed Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicablcprovisionsbrthcFedaal Financial
Accountability and Trairepa^cy Act.

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

'Tr.-(looAV<.^ /NC.

Coniociorloitiab^ ^
Date _l0136.1^EL
Page I of 2
SEAS CFDA#93.044

Jt:



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As ihc Contractor identified in Section U3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions arc true and accurate.

:. The Unique Entity Identifier(UEl) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization'sprecedingcomplcted fiscal year, did your busines.s or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. fedcial contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grams, and/or cooperative agreements?

yes

If the answer to #2 above b NO, slop here.

If the answer to H2 above b YES, please answer the foUowlng:

3. Docs the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reporu filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ̂ ch^gc Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO ■ yes

If the answer to #3 above b VE^ slop here.

irthe answer to #3 above b NO, please answer the foDowing:

4. The names and conrensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Am"'""-

Name: Amouni:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: - Araouni:

CoiMnctor Initial#

Date ̂ 0126122.
Page 2 of 2
SEAS CFDAff9>.044



State of New Hampshire

Department-of State

/

CERTIFICATE

I, DavJd M. Scanlan. Secretao'of Siaie of the Suite of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporaiion registered to transact business in

Netv Hampshire on May 18. 1965. 1 further certify that all tees and documents required by the Secretary ofStaie's oITice have

been received and is in good standing as far as ihb ofllce is concerned.

Business ID: 6.5020

Certificate Number. 0005774957

%

o

%

-Cl

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTtxed

the Seal of the State ofNcw Hampshire,

this lOih day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



OocuSlQn Envilop* ID: 9C2EA6E7-40OF-45554C1M53EFCCBDE2B

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporate Authority)

Fay Pierce Board Chair/Sccrelary of Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc.
(Nime) (Coqwrtlion name)

(Hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly
(State)

elected and acting Board C/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books* (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on 5/31/22. such authority

(Date)

to be in force and effect until September 30"' 2025 .
(Contract termination date)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) arc authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Robtllard Chief Exyomjvg Officer
(Name) (Pwhion)

(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held In.accordance with New Hamoshire
(State of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said auihorizauon has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in ftill force and effect as of the dale hereof. Excerpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section
of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. 1 have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this
davofi3£tabg.2022.

■ inMAieaaaatie^

Board (jhair/Secretary



/^CORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DAii ciSMionrmi

06/2W2Q22

THIS CERTIFICATE (S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HC^ER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE JpLICCS
BELOW. THtS CERTIFICATE OP INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTrUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iN8URER(S), AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
MPORTANT: If tha csftmcBlt holdtr It tn ADDITIONAL MSURED. tha pollcv<l*s) must hpvs ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or b« andorsad.
S 8U8ROOATION IS WAIVED, subftct to tha tarms and conditions of Iht poOcy, tartNn policies may laqulrt an andorsamam. A statamant on
ihli f?artipcf*n Hna* nni ecwifif riohti to tha cartincsta Itoldar In llau of suitfi andorsement(f). _
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ANY AUTO
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To the Board of Directors of

Tr>-County Community Action Prog/am. Inc. and Affiliate
Berlin. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Leone, ,
McDonnm
&Boberts

PftOFBSSIONAL ASSnCUTIO.1

(■J;KI IMKl) 1'Libl.iC ACCOiMWT?

VvOLFKROKO • NOKIll Cu.NVWV
WrtT.K • CONCUKI)

STRA'niO.I

Report on the Finahelat Statements ^
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-Ccunty Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonproftt organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30. 2021 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Sfafemenfs
Management is responsible for the preparation land fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this .includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gerierally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated ftnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for pur audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present falrty, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County-Community Action^Program.
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30. 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated cash flows for'the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ar>d Affiliate's 2020
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 28. 2020. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative Information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2020, is consistent. In all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of addltional analysis and is not a required part of the consoliddted financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records'used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is falrty
staled.,in aD material respects, in reiatlon to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of TrI-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reportir>g and compliance and
the results of that testing, ar^d not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considerir>Q Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

November 19. 2021

North Conway. New Hampshire



TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACT1QM PROGRAM. INcSaND AFFIUATE

CONSOHOATEO STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSmON
JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

F^perty held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

.Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

2021

3^37.032

1,317,839
1.617.249

216,423
52.985

S3S94

6.495.122

2020

$  2,257,081
796,937

1.322.852

47.000
307.017

102,430
77.682

4.911.199

PROPERry I

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

12,917.935

(5.SS0.185)

7.067.750

12,344,805
(5.601.944)

6.742.881

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 439.822 384.711

TOTAL ASSETS $ 14.002.694 $ 12.038.771-

LIASILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABIUTIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable

i  Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable edvances

Other liabilities

Total current (labilities

129,155 $

4,303

233,907

383,435

266,595

324.140
1.400.645

2.742.180

437.843
3,554

180.427

243.779

49,059

137.304

181,463

850.982

2.064.411

LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debL net of current portion

Total liabilities '

4.577.505

7.319.685

4.792.557

6.876,968

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILfTIES AND NET ASSETS

6,199.624

483.385

6.683.009

$ 14.002,694

4,565.253
696.550

5,161.603

$ 12.038.771

^e Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3



TPt-COUMTY CQtfnj^yWTY ACTION PROGRAM tHC. AND AfFlUAfE

C0N80U0ATE0 StATEMENT OF ACnVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENOEO JUNE M. 3021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED CQMPARATtVE mFORiflATtON

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants snd contracts

Program (urtding
USty programs
Irvktnd contrtbutiom

Corstrlbulions

Fundrabing ^
RantaJ income

imarasi hcoma

(Lost) gain on dbposst of property
Lots on write down of property heU ibr sale
Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTtONS

Total revenues, othsr support, and

net assets released from rsstrfctiens

FUNCrtONAL EXPENSES
Program Services:

Agency Fund
Head Start

OuardiansNp
Trartsportatfon
Votuntacr

Worfdorca Developmere
Carrol County Oenof
Support Center
Homelesa

Energy and Communily Devefopn^
Elder

Housing Services

Total program aer^rfcee

Suppotdrrg AdiviUes:
Oenerel and adrrtiniatrabve

Fundraisirrg

Total supporting acOviUes

Tdsl lUnetiorret expenaas

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

MET ASSETS. DEOtNNtNQ OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Rettrtctions

With Donor

RfftrtCllWf

2021

Tout

X20

Total

I  18.296.SS4

1.177,937
2.659.293

364.580
462.340

1.802

684.169

888

(27.288)

13.384

$  415.058 $  18.711.410
1.177.937

2.659.293

364,580

462.340

1.802

684.169

888

(27.288)

13.364

S 14,909,313
1,084.133

1.923.653

455.626

326.215

32.544

635.559

923

257.717

(255.492)
4 379

23.633,439 415.056 24,040.495 19,374.770

526.221 (528.221) . .

24.161.660 (113.165) 24.048.495 19.374.770

1,017.860
2,656.419

760.053

870.078

96.817

40.175
669.641

356.359

4.760.909
8.541.52?
1.192.453
192 010

1.017,880

2,656,419
760.053

670.076
96.817

40.175

669.641

356.359
4.760.909
8,541.527

1,192.453
192.010

1,047.356
2.769,065
769.597
99V604

94.845

346.114

653.610
556.244
800.148

7.824.201

1.149,1X
220.900

21.354.301 2l.3S4.X1 17J24.920

1,172.988 -  - 1.172.988 1.062.613

2.880

1.172.968 1.172.988 1.065.493

22.527.289 22S27.289 18.290.413

1.634.371 (113.165) 1,521,206 1.064,357

4.56S.2S3 598.550 6.161.803 4.077.449

S  6.199.624 S  463S85 S  6.683.009 $ 6.161.806

See Notes to CorrsoUdated Flnanctet StatemenU
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TPI^QUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFIUATE

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THg YEARS ENDED JUNE SO. 2021 AND 2O20

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATINO ACTtVrTIES

Chenge In nel assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net asseb to
net cash provided byopereling activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on disposal of property

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Invenlorfes

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in ilabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrusd compensatad absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities x

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of propetty

Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment on lonp'term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIViriES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTEO CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for.

Interest

2021 m

1.521,206 %  1.084,357

450.040 436.197

27.286 (2.225)

(294.397) (48,769)
90.594 (75,656)
49.445 (16.544)

24,266 (43.645)

(176,124) (41.144)
(9.872) 39,700

334.376 (161,893)
129.291 47,780

142.677 (15.694)
549.663 252.787

2.836.475 1.454.651

25.000 4,495

(780.217) (273.711)

(755.217)

(523.740)
(3.554)

(527.294)

1.$55,954

(269.216)

(145.684)
(4.671)

(150.565)

1,035.080

2.403.649

5  4.994.693 % 3.438.729

$  135.643 i 131.679

See Notea to Consolidated Ftnandal Statements
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TPurniiNTY noMMtiNiTV ACTrnN prooraivi. inc. and affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements Include the accounts of Tri-Counly
Community Action Program. Inc. and its affiliate. Comerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Comerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Comerstone Housing
North, inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many Individual programs.
This Includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services. legal and audil services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration Is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start '

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-Income cnlldren and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health arKJ
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported In achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.

8



TRI-rnUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION

NOTES TO eONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide" individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentaily disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship.
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes," door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical faculties outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers,.ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and lime with over 60 local non-profit and
public agenciw throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 28,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization Is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills requlred.for better jobs.



TRI.CQUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line v\rith the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroli County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental Insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Graflon County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day. 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy, advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless ^
Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

10



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Sen/ices provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

t

LoW'tncome Weatherizat/on

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and Improve the quality of living
while Improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost ̂ ving, health and safety and cart>on lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLInk Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental lncome Is received from HUD.

Cornerstorie includes a 12-unil apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

11



Ar-TipM program, inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles end Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statehients of Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). , Under this basIS; revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or

" payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP). which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipuiattons
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary In
nature; those restrictions will t)e met by actions of tfie Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $483,385 and $596,550
at June 30. 2021 and 2020, respectively. See Note 13.

12



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reciassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported In the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. .

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's disaetion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of lime outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,0(X) and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is Included in the indirect cost
pool and charged, to the programs In accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred. ,
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TRi-nnnNTY community action program, inc. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Estimated useful lives are as follows:
I

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years 7

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $324,140 and $181,463 as of June 30. 2021 and 2020, respectively.

\

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS. generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty In Income taxes and prescribes a re<^nilion
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken In a tax return. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from Income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).
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7pi.r.QUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. ihfC. AMD AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Retirement Plan "
The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30. 2021 and 2020. there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that, require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of properly and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value.,at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed In
service as Instructed by the donor. The Organization redassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in frie financial statements until the
conditions are sut)Stantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected In more than one
year are recorded at fair value, wtiich is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates, applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is Included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are .
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclasslfied to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected In more than one
year at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020. there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted In regards !o timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions In the amount of $216,423 and $307,017,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

the presentation of financial statements In conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent, assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordlngty, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825). Disclosures affair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization s financtal
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

.X

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Progroffi sQiBfiBs snd refoted exootiSGs are allocated to tho various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheeL

Warkers Compsnsatton expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and Is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged Ip the benefiting program
based upon an artalysis of square footage. Costs related to a building Include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

insurance: aulomobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses Include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees, and other expenses which
cannot Ije spectfically Identified and charged to a program.

r
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NOTES TO CONSOUiOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2Q20

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 10.80%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30. 2021 was approximately 11.37%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs It
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $28,130 and
$25,483, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019. the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2021 and 2020.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions^ Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

New Accounting Pronouncement ^ ^
In May 2014, FASB Issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the
most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, liming, and uncertainty of
revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2020, the first day of the Organization's
fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in
a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams; as such, no
cumulative effect adjustment vras recorded. See revenue recognition policy above.

18



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-IS) and measures to prevent its
spread continue to affect the Organization's business. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, Including Uie extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the GOVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic.

During the years ended June 30. 2021 and 2020, and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2021
and 2020:

2021 2020

Financial assets at year-end: ooc-jnoi
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 3,237,032 $ 2,257,081
Accounts receivable 1,617,249
Pledges receivable 216,4^3

Total financial assets 5,070,704 3,886.950

Less amounts not available to be
used vflthin one year
Net assets with donor restrictions 483,385 bSo.ooO
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met In less than a year (41^,665) (4.1

Amounts not available within one year 70|720 186,535

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months £ 4.999.984 f 3i7Wi41g

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses \whtch approximates $3,569,000 and $2,860,000 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectiveiy.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMtlMITY ACTIOM PROGRAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the Insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total In the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current

Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2021

$ 3,237,032

1,317,839
439.622

2020

$2,257,081
796,937
384.711

Cash Restrictions

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It Is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which Is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $20,059 and $20,040, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. These amounts are included In restricted cash on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organizaliori \s required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account Is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2021 and 2020 was $174,755 and $174,626. respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively.
These amounts are included In other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30. 2021 and 2020
was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $245,008 and $190,045, respectively. See Note 15.

N0TE4. INVENTORY . • . u k ^ k
In 2021 and 2020. Inventory included weathenzation materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30. 2021 and 2020 consists of weathenzation materials.
' totaling $52,985 and $102,430, respectively.

NOTES. PROPERTY
Property consists of the following at June 30. 2021:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9,931.953
2,394,489

172,653

418.840

$4,233,084 $5,698,869
1.617.101 777.388

172,653
418JM0

£12.917.935 £5850.185 £7 067.750
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TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020 ^

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2020:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreclatjon Book Value

Building $ 9,810,288 $3,753,302 $6,056,986
Equipment 2.105,950 1,848,642 257,308
Construction

In progress 4,727 - 4,727
Land 423.840 : 423.840 ,

^12 344.805 £5.601.944 $

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, who^ book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not induded in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$449,153 and $435,310, respectively.

The Organization had property held for sale at June 30, 2020 amounting to
$47,000, which was classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position at June 30, 2020. The total loss on the write down
to fair value of this property was $255,492 in 2020.

NOTE 6. ACCRUED EARNED TIME . . ̂
For the years ending June 30. 2021 and 2020. employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30. 2021
2020, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that Its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $233,907 and $243,779,
respectively.
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TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFIUIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020 .

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT . . ̂ ,
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30. 2021 and 2020 consisted of
the following:

2021 2020

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
instaltmentdu© January 2027. $ 96,062 $ 110.824

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936. including interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April

■ 2031. 285.268 307,719

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016 and was paid off during the
yearended June 30,2021. ' '

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, induding interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehide. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30.2021. . "

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, induding interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30.2021. •

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143. including Interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehide. This note was paid off during the year ended
June 30.2021, "
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TRI.COUNTY CnWlMUKIITY ACTinM PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly Installments of $248. including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30, 2021.

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. This note was paid off during
the year ended June 30, 2021.

Bond payable with a bank requiring hionthty
installments of $14,485. including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. rnortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to Interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years;
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

7,294

387.227

2,467,774 2,547.308

1,617,600 1,617.600

250.000 250.000

4.716,704 5.241,331
(10.0441 (10.9311

4,706,660 5,230,400

(129.1551 (437.8431

i 4.577.50& J4.7K.557

24



\KC AFf\UATB

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30. 2021 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount

$  129,155
134,452
139,961
145,697
151,677

4.015.762

^ 4.716.704

As described at Note 3, the Organization Is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTES. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS . . » ^
During the year ended June 30. 2016. the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, which expired In November 2020 and
March 2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30. 2017, the Company
leased an additional cbpier under the terms of a capital lease, which expired in May
2021. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases were recorded at the lower
of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets.
The assets are depredated over their estimate lives.

The obligations inctuded in capital leases at June 30. 2021 and 2020, consisted of
the following:

2021 2020

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for prindpal and
Interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease was
secured by the phone system and matured in
November 2020.

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for- principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease was
secured by a copier and matured In March 2021.

$  1.213

944
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 3D. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease was
secured by a copier and matured in May 2021

Less current portion

1.397

3.554
(3.554)

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE . .... . r i.,
The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit wtth its pnmary financial
institution which Is secured, by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.

-  Borrowings under the line bear Interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES . . r ^
The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space ana
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Addibonally, the
Organizalion has several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For
the years ended June 30. 2021 and 2020. the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $138,598 and $181.004, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2021. are as follows.

Years ending
June 30

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount

127,467
65.722
43,884
43,884
42,869
3.512
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS ' ■ .
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and eWer
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market w/age for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other Individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial .statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

MnTPi? nONCFNTRATION OF RISK . .. ...
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of Its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30. 2021 and 2020.
approximately $18,238,690 (76%) and $14,380,020 (74%). respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2021 and 2020, approximately 67% and 68%. respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was deriv^ from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue .sources, the future
existence of Cornerstone Housing North, inc. is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated In the elderly person s real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to. HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. • Such changes
may occur vrtth little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

MOTP ift ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS ^
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the followtng specific program
services as of June 30,2021 and 2020:

Temporary Munici[wl Funding
FAR

Restricted Buildings
Loans - HSGP
FAP/EAP

RSVP Program Funds
Head Start

RSVP - Matter to Balance

10 Bricks Shelter Funds
DOE

Donations to Maple Fund
Loans - HHARLF

Coronavlrus Response

2021 2020

216,423 $ 307,017

174,056 102,998

39,913 85,713
24,403 22.029

16.330 24,350

5.887 5,887

5,856 -

500 500

17 -

. 46,287

. 1,571
- 104
_ 94

Total net assets with donor restrictions S 438.385 j

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The'orga^Mtfon^receives funds under several federal and slate grants. Under the
terms of the grants the OrganizaUon is required to comply with various stipulatioj^
including use and Ume restrictions. If the Organization was found to t^
noncomplianl with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding. ^

environmental Contingencies

On March 30. 2009. the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located In Berlin, New Hampshire. There era 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Benin Mills
Company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and pai^ of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction. -

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Conf/naeffc/es

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and sut)sequ8ntly, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30. 2021, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS^
Under Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD. the
Organization Is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of properly and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $181,723 and $155,278 were held in a segregated account at
June 30. 2021 and 2020, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD'S prior virritten approval. Residual receipts of $59.517 and $31,049 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUMF 30. 2021 AND 2020

In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was
funds to HUD totaling $31,412 during the year ended June 30. 2020. In addition to
the funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment during the year ended June 30. 2020.

MOTF ifi pFCLASSIFiCATION ,
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior years financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS ^ ̂  ̂ ,
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after ̂ e staternent of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be i^ued.
Recognized suljsequent events are events or transactions that provide additioriai
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial (wsition date.
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financiar statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evident about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date.
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November
19,2021, the date the financial statements were available to be Issued.
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TRI-CQUhfTY pQMMUNITY ACTION Pt^OQRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IM ACCQRDANrP WITH GQI/EgWMFWr AUD/T7NG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in tl^
America and the sUndards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmgnl Auditing Sta^ards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates, the financial statements of Tn-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which compose the stalernents of financ^
position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activilies. fundional 6^"=^
^ cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2021.

In'^lTt^ng°aJld perfoming ̂  statements, we consider^
AcSon Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances (or the purpose of exprw^ng
financial statements but rwt for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tn-CountyS^nr^oTpr^^ inc.'s M control. Accordingly, we do express an opin.on on the
effectiveness of TrLCounty Community Action Program Inc's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned ^ "
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A matenal weakness Is a decency, or a
combination of deficiencies. In internal control, such that there Is a on a
misstatemenl of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected arid corrected on a
timely basis A signiftcant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of defiaenaes. in
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described In
section and was not designed to identify aU deficiencies in internal ^
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we dd not identify any

M ISemTcontrot that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, matenal
weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters ^ o • ■

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Adion Program Inc. s
financial statements are free from material misslatement. we performed tests of its compllar^
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. H^ever
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instan^ of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report . , , . , i
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of In^al control aM
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectwenws of trw
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit performs m
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's Internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 19, 2021

North Conway. New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY CQMMIIMITY AC.TinM PROGRAM. INC.

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROrCSlONAL ASSOUMIOM
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• cONCOkfi
5rK.':iU\M

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-Counly Community Action Program. Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire ^

Report on Comptlanee for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that couid have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2021. Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'8 major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanyirig schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility ^ ^
(Management Is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal programs.

Auditors'Responsibility ,
Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Communtly Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing starxlards
generally accepted in the United Stales of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Adm/n*sfraf/ve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perfonn the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

Wb believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federaf Program , . .w-
In our opinion. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. complied, in all matenal witn tte
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and matenal effect on each
of Its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. is responsible for establishing arw
maintaining effective internal control over comptiance with the types of compilance r^irements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered TrvCounty
Community Action Program lnc.*s Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements ̂ at
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion cm
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance In
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicjn on he
effectiveness of Intemal control over compilance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal contrd over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct. noncOmpliance with a type of complance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
compliance Is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Intemal control over compliance, suc^ wei
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance vnth a type of compliant requirernem of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A stgniftcant
deficiency in Internal control over compliance Is a dericiency, or a combination of defici^ies m
Intemal control over compUance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal pr^ram that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to menl
attention by those charged with governance. ^

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpo^ dKcrited in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal ̂ rol over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not idenbfy any
deficiencies In intemal control over compliance that we consider to be matenal weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of Intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. ,

November 19. 2021

North Conway. New Hampshire
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rnMMUNrrv pR"QRam. inc.

SCHEDULE OF FINdInGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR FNDED JUNE 30. 2021

1  The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the ftnandal statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be'reported in accordance with Govemmen/
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Comp//ance Required by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance vflth 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. DepL of Health & Human Services. LIHEAP - ALN 93.568

U.S. Dept of the Treasury, Coronavirus Relief Fund - ALN 21.019

U.S. DepL of the Treasury. ERAP-ALN 21.023

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development. CoC - ALN 14.267

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company,' Electrical Assistance Program (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distir^guishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - lUlAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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(^TRI-COUNTY
'■'^COMMUNITY ACTION

Serving CoOs, Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

Board of Directors

FY2023

Coos County Carroll County Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzo

Business

Brian Hoffman

Business

Charles Monaghan

Business

Melissa Mullen

Business

Linda Massimilla

Elected Official

Ruth Heintz

Business Attorney

Fay Pierce

Low Income

Richard Mcleod

Low income

Treasurer

George Sykes

Elected Official



Tri^CouDty Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Tiilc Salary

Jeanne Robillard CEO $132,000

Randall Pilotte CFO $90,000

Brenda Gaane Interim CPO $65,000

Josh Poisk>n PrORram Director ' $50,000

j



1.. flfiobillard

r»HE

Pmgnnf devcJopmeot, miniganeot aod tdiniflittrtttoo • Coramuxuty ooUaboncions
Devdopmest of polky, procncol, aod acrdce ddivecy to meet fondec standards

Grant writing and mtnagcmcni * Bxidgct pcrfbrmance and financial reporting
Innoradvc solutions fit problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Profesaiooal presentations • Public ̂ )caldi^
Dedicatioo * Imaginatioo * Oecennination * Fortitude

I'nOKIXSSIOWAL Exi'i;nii:wrE

lVl«C<Minix Commmalfj Action Progrimxa, Inc.
d&lef Execntive Ofiicer
Berlin. NH 30i6 • tnrromi fTompMo0me»*t

)

Tr4»Coinity Connmiattr AcUon Proflramc, Inc.
I^ief l^temdng OfHccr
Berlin, IVB M16 • 3015
Responsible for the opeiarioa* of aix agency Divisions 15 individual pn^nms that provide over
60 fonttiTTK^ services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supcfvisjoo of Dhrisioo Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
aod budget performance; tactical ovcroghi of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goalr, dcvebp and implement strategies to improve individual piopams and overall agency program
and fiscal performance: oroiee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operaiioas of progtams.

IMCotmay CoMiitiiiiiily Aeiieo Pro^romn. lac.
DivMoa BisectorITCCAP PreveotSoa §ctik—
Derlixi. NH 301S-3OI6

Rc^xmsiblc for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and cxpcnditufcs and raonhof budget perfonnancc; general ovmi^t of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise ptograra directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor rcsulo, aod prepare grant reports and financial statements for fuodcri
and agency, develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs: rcpresem program through
participarion in state and local initiatives relative to prograro/divisioo goals and icivkc delivery.
coUabciate with itakchoUers and elected ofBdals, induding ptesenring legislative testimony.

IVl-Coonty Commxmity Adftoa Progrwna, Inc.
Prm^m/piviafao Direeien Slc^poH Center eS Bovcli Hooae
tiiileteii. New Bempefairc 3007* MIS
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and fesidrntial
shelter, write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant repotts and fintodal
statements for fimdcrs and parent agency, oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and dirca victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal hw; develop
faodraising and madtcring strategics; participate in state sod local collaborations to enhance victim
services; reptcsenr program io state and federal victim service initiatives, including prescmabon of
Icglslarive tcitimony; create and present iraioings for medical and legal ptofcssionala on legal staftdtrds
a^ best practxei for victiro services.



/LRobillard*2

Bookk*«pen Women** Bural Bntreprenenrial Network ̂ WREN|
Beihlebem* Nfl cnrrenl PT employmcaf

Responsibk for grant 6$cal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi*we^y payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locap'ons, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-Coim^ Community Aetion Profraine, Ine,
Direct Serrlcee/Vcbintecr Coordlmitori Support Center ot Bnrcli Donrc
littletoD, New Hnmpehtre 1997 Se 9007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; rccruu, train and supervise staff, voluntters, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach preseccadons and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-t2; provide on-call coverage of ciisis line

JMrcctort Hnverhtil Area Jovctulc Dhrcraion Program
WoodoviOe. Now Hampahire 1999-3001
^Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police dcparoncnts, and diversion program; prepare and file
coun reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Coimaelor/nUa E Toocfacrr Noribeni Family InoillnteiJeBeraon Fk«Ucr
dcBcraoa, New Dampakfre 199^1999
Provide tndividual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, fadlicate peer support groups, devek^
and implement treatment plans and case mana^ment services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
daisroom setting sxipervise youth in daily living sldils

Edocaitoii

BS In W"- Servkee» Springfield College School of Bnmoa Sowleca. Bootoa. MA
Criminal Justice Concentxition, Crainakd with 4.0 CPA

AX In Drag end Alcohol BcliBkilllalton Coanaeling fDARC ProgrntDl
Soalbcra Coenecdeol Commnnlty CoUegCt New Bovea. CT

AdUHional CTrflla- Profcmioniil l^emfCTwhlp I>n4 Civft Affillfftfons

♦ Chaitmsn. BethlchemBoatdof Selectmen, Town of Bethiehcm Twice Elected 2006-2010
Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 20Q0-20Ol,TrtajKm1996-199S

♦ Chainnan, HavctHll Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003
♦ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Dtivcr Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Roistered Sexual Haiassmenc Prevention Trainet in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entcepcencuriil Network 2014; la^stdual Mtmhtr 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010-201S
♦ Bethlehem Cooservatioo Commission 2006 -.atrrtn/

♦ Granite United Wiy, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
_  ♦ TCCAP: Commendtdoo'Divbion Director Award,

♦ Bethlehem Qtizcn's Advuory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010
♦ Ueensed Foster Parent, Slate of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner ; Aurora Enctgics 201S- nrmat
♦ Speakeasy Tiso Jazz Vocalbc/ Sweet Jamm Swing Bandjaza Vocalist 1997- otrmu
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating Assodadon/Interostionai Skating Insdcute nimtU xim 1993



Brenda Gagne
Department Head, Economic Sapports

Interim CPO

Tri County Community Action Program Inc.

Professional Summary:

Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP'S Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Eipeiience:

Tri County Commnnity Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020 - Present

Department Head, Economic Supports
6/5/2022 Interim CPO

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St
Beriin NH 03570
5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Responsibilities include; .
Overseeing the operations and administrative functions of a social service transportation program scrvmg Coos,
Northern Grafton and Carroll Counties.

•  * . •

Tri-Counly CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St.
Berfin NH 03570
7/2004-5/20I7

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
♦Running the daily c^rcralioins of a public transit and para transit service.
♦Facility Management.
♦Gatb^g statistics
♦Quarterly reporting toNHDOTand BEAS.



•Preparing quarterty invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
•Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
•Creating procedure manuals
•Grant writing
•Budget preparation
•Writing Warrant Articles
•Drug & Alcohol Testing
•Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village ConstructioD
P.O. Box 96

MQan, N.H. 03583
5/1995. 1/2004

Accounts Manager/Orrice Manager

Responsibilities included;
•Customer service.

•Accounting using Quick Books Pro.
•Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
•Prq)aring Customer Statements and Invoices.
•Accounu Receivable and Accounts Payable.
•Creating and tunning Profit and Loss Reports.
•Data Entry.
•Phone communications and general secretarial duties.

Milan Parks and Recreation Dept
P.O. Box 300

Mflan, N.H. 03583
6/1997 - 3/2002

Paries and Recreation Director

Responsibilities included;

•Directed and implemented ̂ >0Tts and.recreationa] programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dimmer.

•Development of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yeariy budgets.
•Equipment and materials purchasing.
•Organizing and supervising a large Volunteer staff.
•Working with the public to create new prognms.
•Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
•Applying for Federal and State Grants.



Edacation:

Graduate Oodiam High School
Corham NH

Granite State College
Emergency Management

Southern New Hampshire UoivcrsUy
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Conrses
Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of FadHtics Management ScrainaT (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Worksl^, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Prbcuremcot for Small and Medium Transit Systems.

Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportatkm Association of America
June 2009

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri State Transit Conference
9/2007,10/2008, 10/2010,9/2011, 9/2013.9/2014, 9/2016,9/2017

Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005



Randall S. Pilotte

SUMMARY

Accountingprofmiooal with over 29y<Br3of experience, ofwhich 21 years were with a single private mannfactuio.
16 year# of cxpericttce managing acconnting professionals. Key compettnclea include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payable# Inventoiy
n»r>v Accounts Recavabjes SaksaJfC Tax

Bud^ting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

EXPERIENCE

TRI^UNTY COMMUNnV AfTTON PROGRAM. tNC.. Berto, NH 06/2013-Prc#ciil
CFO(2017-Pre#ail) , j.
Work closely withlhcCEO, Treisurerand Finaocc Committee to tdentriy performance goals for the Ageocy and to
maintain #y#taM to momtorpeifonmncoagainsltbosegoaJs. Plao, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial managetncot fyatems andacthrities ofthe Agency with a budget of$ ISM.
• Prqxsreytrovideicoinpkto and accurate financial, itaristicel. and accounting records for the A^ocy and outside

regglitoiyagoodea. . . ^ ^ ̂
• As a member of the senior msnagerocnt team, assists in the formulatioo and execunon of coiponte finance

policies, objectives and programs. ^ ̂
• Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Proyam pffeclois. Plan, direct,coofdinste, implement and evalaatc fiscal perfbrmaacc rtvicwB ofTri-Couniy CAP# divuions.
• Hire,train,dircctandevalualBeiQp!oyceperfonnnDccwithuithcdepartiiicnt;rcconmicodpromrtiona and aalary

•  Fto^dcB^ffTVTi^ and directioD for the Facilities Mana^ment Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are miintai«d for •W-Coomy CAP'S facOitics. Ciearioiiofrive-yearcapinlplan.

• Reviews cash flows for each drvisian. monitor cash management practices, and momtorin vestments associated
with each property.

• Prepared rn^yeaiddrireAictno plan.

FbcalDlrectoiyiiifertniCFO(20l6-2017) ... n a
• Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accountt

payable, accounts receivable^ cash receipts and fixed assets.
• pr^re and supervise the production of financial slatemeni# inchiding Balance Sheet, Revenue atid Expense

Repotts, and Cost Summaries on 8 rooathly and annual basis.
• Maintain proper acoounring ooirirds on grants and contiibutioDS to ensure acoirate rcvmoe repcctmg and eiqicose

tracking to support periodic mcnltoring's by funden and auditon.
• Pnwife an balance ahecL revenue and expQUe accounts are analygdandfecoacilcdpcnodically.
• Collaborate with Division Directors to roooitor departmental revenue end cxpai»venus budgrt.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual fmancial reporting; and impleinenting

dq>aitmeoaal gods.
• Prepare audit icbedules for extent! auditois.
• CoUaborato with external authtors in conplcting tOTual audit hi a timely manner

Aecottndng Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



ICENTNUTRrnoy cmoup. INC rf̂ a Blue Seal Feeds. Inc. k LoDdonilcny, NH 03/I989-09/2010
Anfatant CootroDer (2005-2010)

t  PjuhtmH an atr orate and timely monthly and year end cloick cod sitting ofthe pietanUioQ of a consolidated and
mdividQBl fmancitl jtatcmcnt in accordance with OAAP for nine mamiftrturing plants and 11 retail storea with
grois revenue® in exccw of $200M. Additional respotuftffities included preparing journal eairies. account
analysis, inventory review and observatioo, fixed assets, and depreoation.

• Managed, tmined, and tuperviied a staffaccountant respcnable for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
rcconciliatkm, tonntge tax return^ bank recondbaticDS, and assignment ofspedal prqeds.

• OvCTsaw *ti f tpfrts of pfffpri^^'y gftftwgfe, miih^-itate payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports. includingqnaiterlyandyear-cndrctuim,processingof W2s, and supervision of
payroD clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throt^boui New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depodlories.
f  Prepared mnhi-statessiesAoe tax returns and acted as point ofcontact for audits.
•  Pro-activcly coadied and consulted plant and store mantgcment on the annual budget devcloptnent prooeia
• Oversaw roonds-endaectuals. ■ ' ,
• Assisted and responded to auditon* requests on annual aucfit!
• Fllfd win"**! ffwngtnjteMwlahiindQnfldpfopeity reports with a&CJOtJiatc states.

Accounting Manager(I999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and overeigbt to the Accounting function.
Sopervised and trained two accounts payableclcrks on Chart of Accaints, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment ofvendor's invdcca, employee travel leimburscmcnts, and standard accountiDgpitcticea.

Aeeonnta ttt/Payron Supervltor (1994-1999)

Accooatftot (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TPI rtfYtM INC.. Concoid. NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Rcantts Accoimtanl (1988-1989)

Acconnts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting. FftANKUNPtERCECOLLEOfi. Concord, NH



EXPERIENCE

JOSHUA POISSON

PROGRAM DIRECTOR

ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES

KEY SKILLS

MS Office Suite proficient* Ability to

work collaboratlvely • Problem

solving r Leadership skills • Excellent
organizational skills«Meticulous
attention to detail« Approachable

and relatable • Strong Interpersonal
& communication skills

ACTIVITIES AND INTERESTS

Famiiy • Travel • Fishing • Hiking

REFERENCES

Available upon request

PROGRAM OIRECTOfi-ENERGY ASSlSTANa SERVICES, TCXAPJNC .

MAY 2021-.PRESENT

Directly responsible for the supervision and operation of all
personnel, programs, and projectis under Fuel & Energy Assistance.
Manage fiscal operations Including budget developihent and
authorization of expenditures while following all guidelines and
procedures given by the Federal Government.'

ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN & BUDGET ANALYST, TCCAP, INC
NOV 2015-MAY 2021

Responsible for reviewing and processing all accounts payable
invoices submitted from the organization's programs. Process
check runs on a weekly basts. Review the company's cash receipts
dally. Monthly reconciliations of vendor accounts. Yearly tasks
Include 1099 tax form creation and assisting with budget process.

BOOKKEEPER TRANSfT DIVISION, TCCAP, ING

MAR 2015-NOV 2015

Responsible for daily processing of Invoices, counting of bus fare
collection boxes, and preparation and depositing of funds.
Reconcile vendor accounts for accuracy, assist with division budget

creation, and monthly recondllailon of bank accounts.

EDUCATION

NHC0MMUNrTYTECHN!CALCCLiE6E,BERUN NH

1998 I COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY

PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY, PLYMOUTH NH

1997 I TEACHER - PHYSICAL EDUCATION

BERUN HIGH SCHOOL, BERUN NH

1993-1997 1 GENERAL EDUCATION

CIVIC AFFILIATIONS

2019-2021 Board Treasurer North Woods Learning Center

2021 - Present Board of Directors for Neighbor Helping Neighbor
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February 15,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arxl the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Senrices, to enter Into a msfnorandum of understanding with the New Hampshire
Department of Energy (Vendor # 359894-B001). Concord, New Hampshire, in the amount of
$82,200 for Senior Eriergy Assistance Services, with the option to renew for up to six (6)
additional years, effective Octol)6r 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Coundt approval, whichever
is later, through September 30,2024. 50% Federal Funds. 50% General Funds.

Funds are avaOable In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
antidpated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with tira authority to adjust
budget tine items within the price limitation and encumbrances betwe^ state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05^5-48-401010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO LOCALS. ADM ON AGING
GRANTS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Numtier Total Amount

2023 040-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency
48130308

$30,825

2024 049-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency
48130306

S41.100

2025 049-584952
Transfer to Other

Stale Agency
48130306

$10,275

Total $82,200

TStDipertBHntofHtollkendHumonSeTvkn'Mimen U (a/ma and /dmi/iw
(a protMlng appoftuahia fof eilinni tg achitw htoUft end indtptttdtnet.



EXPLANATION

the pur|>ose of this request Is to enter into a Ktemorandum of Understanding with the
New Hiwnpshire Department of Energy (DOE) to provide energy assistance In the form of fuel
oil, electricity, gas or wood to New Hampshire residents over sli^ (60) years of age. The DOE
la the designated administrator for the statewide Fuel Assistance Program and has the capacity
and expertise to serve the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services' population of
eligible older adults.

Approximately 152 households wlO be served annually from Octol>er 1, 2022 to
September 30.2024.

The Senior Eriergy Assistance Program (SEAS) provides energy assistance funds for
individuals, 60 years of age or older, who are over income under the tovMncome Hme Energy
Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The goal is to allow irxfividuals to be able to stay in their home.
This assistance wQI be provkled by the DOE to provide support throughout the State. Senior
Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) assists in the prevention of an energy emergency that is
defined as conditions that pose serious threat to the health and safety of Individuals from the
lack of adequate home energy.

The DOE'S performance will be rheasured by their ability to provide ertergy assistance to
senior households bi accprdarKe with the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding as
evidenced by monthty invoices and reports submitted to the Department. In addition, by May
15th of each State Fiscal Year, the DOE will reix)rt to the Department the outcome of cPent
feedback about the quality of services provided by the DOE.

As referenced in Section 2, Term. Subsection 2.2. of the attached agreernent, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to six (6) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of sen/ices, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and
Council approval.

Should the Governor and CouncQ not au^orize this request,-the assistance provided to
these senior households may be reduced to a level that could jeopardize their ability to remain
in their homes. These energy assistance services allow the. elderly to maintain maximum
independence, health and quaPty of life, which supports the Department's mission for Individuals
aged sixty (60) and over to remain in the community.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #9d:044, FAIN #2101NHOASS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no tonger available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shlbinette

Conimiss loner

ThtDtpartrntni^HtalOiand Human Sarwn'Mmfcdulo join eemmun/(i«« andfamiltu
in prauiding ̂ iportunUUa fot eiiitont (o athUtn htaliM end (ndtptndtnt*.
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

AND

Now Hampshire Department of Energy

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1. This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports and
Services. Bureau of Eideriy and Adull Services (OHHS), 129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301 and tho New Hampshire Department of Energy (DOE). 21 South
Fruil Street^ Suite. 10. Concord. NH 03301 (referred to as the-Parties').

1.2. The purpose of this MOU is to set forth the roles ar>d responsibilities of the Parties.
The DHHS will provide statewide energy assistance through the Senior Energy
Assistance Services (SEAS) as part of the statewide Fuel Assistance Program (FAP)
administered by the DOE: and

1.2:1. The DOE Is responsil>le for tho disbursement of the DHHS energy
assistance funds by contracting with the Tive (5) Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) to carry out the duties of the FAP In New Hampshire

N  which are Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc.; Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.; Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.; Community Action Partnership of Strafford (bounty; and
TrI-Counly Community Action Program. Inc.; and

1.2.2. The goal of,this service is to ensure New Hampshire residents, age sixty
(60) and older, are able to remain in their homes and communities and.
to etisure that tho services they receive assist them in remaining
independent; and

1.3. In connection with the performance of this MOU. the Parties agree to comply with all
applicable laws and regulations.

2. TERM

2.1. Effecti\^ Date: This MOU Is effective October 1. 2022 or upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever Is later.

2.2. Duration: The duration of this MOU is from the Effective Date through September 30.
2024. The Parlies may extend the MOU for up to six (6) years upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agroomont of the parlies. ar>d approval of tho
Govorrtor and Exccutivo Council.

2.3. Modification: The Parties may modify this MOU by mutual written agroemont at any
time, subject to appropriate State approval.

2.4. Terminatioa' Either party may. at Its sole discretion, terminate this MOU for any
reason, in whole or in part, by providing thirty (30) days written rK)tice to the other
party. In the event of an early torminntion of this MOU for any other reason than tho
completion of services, the DOE shall deliver to DHHS. not later than thirty (30) days
after the termination, a "Termination Report' describing in detail all activities performed
and the MOU funds used up to and iixluding the date of termination.

MOU-202>Ol.TSS-01-eN£RG PjgoKXC r/OU-l 0
2/2«»/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

2.5. In the event the services and/or prescribed outcomes described within this MOU are
not met to the satisfaction of DHHS, OHMS reserves the right to immediately terminate
this Agreement upon written riotice.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY (DOE)

3.1. The New Hampshire DOE agrees to:

3.1.1. Provide energy assistance to ehglbie households. Require all irtdivjduals ages
sixty (60) and older appfytng for energy assistance to complete a FAR
application. Ensure those households with members age sixty (60) and older
who are Ineligible for l>enefils under regular FAR program guidelines are rwtified
by their CAA that they may be eligible for SEAS benefits. The DOE shall
determine ePgibillty for energy assistance as specified in The Older Americans
Act of 1965. as amended and through the FAR application process as set forth
in the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, in coordination with tho CAAs.

3.1.2. Monitor all applications and payment procedures of the CAAs. The DOE shall
ensure the CAAs maintain records for oach indivkJuai recipient and maintain
firwncial records.

3.2. Rules and Policies:

3.2.1. The DOE shall provide services according to the rules and policies of DOE's
Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) as part of the statewide Fuel
Assistance Program (FAP) and DHHS which are incorporated by reference Into
this MOU. and as specified in the Stale Plan on Aging and the Older Americans
Act of 1965 as amended, and in effect at any time during the MOU period as they
may be adopted or amended.

3.3. Reporting and Quality Assurance:

3.3.1. Tho DOE shall collect and report the following de-Identified aggregate data to
DHHS on a monthly basis;

3.3.1.1. Number of clients served by town;

3.3.1.2. Number of units of senrice delivered to clients;

3.3.1.3. Monthly program amount by direct and indirect costs; and

3.3.1.4. Other data related to service provision as requested by DHHS.

3.3.2. The DOE shall report the data on a standard template provided by DHHS.
3.3.3. The DOE shall submit completed data reports to 8EAS. Finance and Business

Operations, 129 Pleasant Slreel, Concord, New Hampshire 03301-0387.

3.3.4. The DOE agrees to obtain client feedback as to the quality of sorvices provided
by the CAAs and report the outcome to BEAS by May 15°' of each year of the
MOU and to participate in any future Quality Assurance Measures adopted by
BEAS. :

3.3.5. The DOE shall forward the information collected from the CAAs pertaining to
DHHS Exhibit J Certification regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance lo BEAS.

3.4. Perforrriance Measure:

■  I-
MOU20V3-OL1SS-OJ-UNCRO PaooZolG MOO-10

2
?/24/?0??
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

To ensure the provision of SEAS home energy services, to assist in the prevention of
on energy emergency that is defined as a condition(s) that poses serious threat to the
health and safety of Individuals from the lack of adequate home energy fuel, the DOE
shall ensure the CAAs follow up with the client after delivery of service to confirm the
energy emergency was prevented.

3.5. Consumer Appeal Process:

The DOE shall maintain an appeal and administrative fair^hearing process as set forth
in DOE'S Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, for Individuals who have been denied
PAP services or question the FAR benefits provided.

3.6. Criminal Background and SEAS State Registry Checks:

The DOE shall require the CAAs to conduct criminal background checks for all
employees, applicants for employment, volunteers and applicants for volunteer
po^ons if those positions could possibly have client contact in the client's place of
residence.

3.7. The DOE shall require the CAAs to comply with RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII. which
requires the submission of the name of a prospective employee who may have client
contact, for review against the BEAS State Registry, effective July 1. 2007.

3.8. The DOE shall require the CAAs tu submit a detailed description of the language
assistance services they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of
the effective date of the contract agreement between DOE ar>d the CAA.

4. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

4.1. The DHHS agrees to:

4.1.1. Sut^ect to the DOE's compliance with the terms and conditions of this MOU,
reimburse the DOE at the rate and for up to the units of services provided to
eligible individuals as follows in Table A: Service Rates and Units.

Table A: Services Rates and Units

Service State Fiscal Year

Rate Per

Unit

NumtMr of Unite

(Households)

Eiwgy Assistance

2023 (July 1,2022 to

June 30. 2023) $270.38 114

Energy Assistance

2024 (July 1.2023 to

June 30, 2024) $270.38 152

Energy Assistance
2025 (July 1.2024 to
September 30. 2025) $270.38 38

5. PAYMENT TERMS

MOU-202J-OLTSS01 ENf PG Pogc 3 of 6 UOU.1.0 Ql
7./7.A/7.027.
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Memorandum of Understancflng Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

5.1. The maximum amount of funds available for reimbursement under this MOU from
DHHS to the DOE shall not exceed $30,825 in State Fiscal Year 2023, $41,100 In
State Fiscal Year 2024, and $10,275 in Slate Fiscal Year 2025.

5.2. The DOE shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to DHHS r>o later than
the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The DOE shall:

5.2.1. Ensure the invoice is on DOE's letterhead.

5.2.2. Ensure the Invoice identifies the dates that services were provided, actual units
provided and total dollar amount for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

5.3. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting documentation may be assigned an
electronic signature and emailed to BEASInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov. or Invoices may be
mailed to:

Ftnandal Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

5.4. DHHS shall make payment to the DOE within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice
and supporting documentation for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval of the
sulxnitted invoice.

5.5. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall be due
to DHHS no later than forty (40) days after the MOU completion date.

5.6. Fundlr>g for this servico is provided by the Administration for Community Living Title
IIIB Supportive Services, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance # CFDA 93.044,
Federal Award Identincation Number (FAIN) 2101NHOASS (Federal Funds) and State
Ger>eral Funds. Account 05-095-48-481010-78720000-049-584902 (General Funds).

5.7. Notwithstanding any provision of this MOU to the contrary, all obligations of DHHS
hereunder, includlr>9 without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds. DHHS shaQ not
be required to trartsfer funds from any other source in the event that funds from Federal
and General Funds are reduced or tiecome unavailable.

5.8. The Parties may agree to changes limited to adjusting amounts within the price
limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and bud^t class
lines through the Bucket Office may be made by written agreement of both parties,
Without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council. If needed and
justifiod

6. IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES

6.1. Disputes arising under this MOU that cannot bo resolved between the agencies shall
be referred to the Now Hampshiro Department of Justice for review and resolution.

6.2. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with Iho laws of the State of New
Hampshire.

6.3. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties and this MOU shall not be
construed (o confer any such benefit.

MOU-2023-OLT$S-01-ENERG Pa{}0 4n(6 l.«OU-1.0 (7
2/24/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
,Energy

6.4. In the event any of the provisions of this MOU are held to be contrary to any state or
federal law. the remaining provisions of this MOU will remain in full force and effect.

6.5. This MOU. which may be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire MOU and understarxtings between the
parties, and supersedes all prior MOU and understandings relating hereto.

6.6. Nothing herein shad be construed as a waiver of sovereign Immunity, such Immunity
being hereby specifically preserved.

MOU-2023-DLTSS-01-ENCRO 5 oT fi MOU-1 0

?/;4/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The Newi^Hampshlre OeiMrlment of
Energy

APPROVALS:

-Ow»liiiii< kf.

2/11/2022

Christine Santaniello Date
Associate Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services

I janji CkiCdiM. 2/24/2022
JarerTGfiiSin'i^ Date
Commissioner
NH Department of Energy

The preceding Memorandum of Understanding, having t>een reviewed by this office, is
approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2/2A/2022

Name;Robyn cuarirto ^ Date
Title: Attorney

The foregoing Memorandum of Understanding was approved by the following authority of the
State of New Hampshire:

Name: Date
Title:

MOU2023-OLTS5 0t.GNERO ' P3(K)&o(6 MOU-I.O


